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>>Committee commenced at 9:00
Chairperson (Ms. Angnakak): Good

morning, everybody. Welcome to the
House. | would like to begin today’s
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deliberations by asking Mr. Mikkungwak
if he could say the prayer, please.

>>Prayer

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Mikkungwak. Do you agree with the
agenda?

Some Members: Agreed.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you.
(interpretation ends) Ms. Pallug, thank
you for being here and I would like to
invite you to begin your opening
comments. Ms. Thompson, my apologies.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Good
morning. My name is Mary Thompson
and | am the Chair of the Inuit
Ugausinginnik Taiguusiliugtiit. Thank
you.

First of all, I would like to thank the
Standing Committee for inviting us to be
here and for this opportunity to talk about
work at the Inuit Ugausinginnik
Taiguusiliugtiit.

Before I get started, | want to mention
that both the executive director and I are
new in our positions. However, we have
been talking to the Taiguusiliugtiit staff
and looking through the files to inform
ourselves as much as possible about
Taiguusiliugtiit’s activities over the last
five years so as to answer any questions
that the Committee may have for us.

The Inuit Ugausinginnik Taiguusiliugtiit
was established in 2008 when the Inuit
Language Protection Act was approved.
The Inuit Ugausinginnik
Taiguusiliugtiit’s duties and powers came
into force in September 2009. The Inuit
Uqausinginnik Taiguusiliugtiit then
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became a statutory board at arm’s length
from the Government of Nunavut in
September 2011. The basic function of
Taiguusiliugtiit is to make decisions
about standard terms, usage, and
orthography in the Inuit language and to
encourage and coordinate research about
the Inuit language.

Since 2010, the Inuit Ugausinginnik
Taiguusiliugtiit has researched and
documented terminology in a range of
areas from mining, health, and devolution
to legal terms for a will kit, traditional
names for months, and emotions. We
have published books on traditional
terminology, iglu and gamutik, and more
of traditional terms are ready to be
published, garmaq and qullig. We have
prepared a language proficiency
assessment tool that will be used in
assessing the Inuit language proficiency
of GN staff. We have also recognized
individuals and organizations that have
contributed to the advancement of the
Inuit language each year through the Inuit
Ugausinginnik Taiguusiliugtiit language
awards.

Our current projects include consultations
and research to determine whether it will
be possible to adopt one standard Inuit
writing system for all of Nunavut. We are
also working with other GN departments
to implement the Language Incentive
Program over the next few years so as to
recognize and encourage training and
advancement in the Inuit language among
GN staff. We are also carrying out
research on the grammar of the Inuit
language and on dialectal differences, as
well as continuing to document
terminology for a number of clients.

Taiguusiliugtiit is also aiming to promote
our public visibility through a new
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communications strategy. We have
realized that although Taiguusiliugtiit has
carried out terminology work in a number
of fields, often that work does not seem
to be reaching the public, so this is
something we are going to be working
on.

We have accomplished a lot in the first
five years that Taiguusiliugtiit has
existed. There is a lot of work still to be
done and we are gradually increasing our
capacity to promote and strengthen the
Inuit language in Nunavut.

Thank you, Madam Chairperson. We will
be happy to answer any questions the
Committee may have. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Those were really good
opening comments. (interpretation ends)
Now it’s my turn.

Good morning. Thank you for being with
us here today. My name is Pat Angnakak
and | represent the Riding of lgaluit-
Niagunnguu.

I would like to formally welcome
everybody present to this meeting of the
Legislative Assembly’s Standing
Committee on Oversight of Government
Operations and Public Accounts. We are
meeting today on the occasion of our
Standing Committee’s televised hearing
on the most recent annual report of the
Inuit Ugausinginnik Taiguusiliugtiit.

I would like to introduce my Standing
Committee. We have:

e Mr. Tony Akoak, who is the Member
of Gjoa Haven;

e Joe Enook, Member for Tununig;

e David Joanasie, who is the Member
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for South Baffin;

e Pauloosie Keyootak, Member for
Ugqummiut;

e Steve Mapsalak, Member for Aivilik;

e Simeon Mikkungwak, Member for
Baker Lake;

e Allan Rumbolt, Member for Hudson
Bay;

e Alexander Sammurtok, Member for
Rankin Inlet South; and

e Tom Sammurtok, Member for Rankin
Inlet North-Chesterfield Inlet.

I would like to take this opportunity to
publicly thank the chair and the executive
director of the Inuit Ugausinginnik
Taiguusiliugtiit for appearing before us
today.

The terms of reference for the Standing
Committee include the mandate to review
the reports of the Inuit Ugausinginnik
Taiguusiliugtiit.

The Inuit Ugausinginnik Taiguusiliugtiit
was formally established on September
19, 2009 under the Inuit Language
Protection Act to expand the knowledge
and expertise available with respect to the
Inuit language and to consider and make
decisions about Inuit language use,
development, and standardization.

The Inuit Ugausinginnik Taiguusiliugtiit
is responsible for developing and
approving standardized terminology and
expressions in the Inuit language,
conducting research and documenting
traditional Inuit language terminology,
developing standards to ensure that the
quality of the Inuit language is
maintained, supporting government
bodies and other organizations in
developing terminology and competency
levels, assessing the status of the Inuit
language in the territory, and recognizing
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achievements of excellence within the
territory in relation to the advancement of
the Inuit language.

On previous occasions during this
Assembly, the Standing Committee has
held televised hearings on entities such as
the Qulliq Energy Corporation and
Nunavut Tourism to account for their
activities, priorities, and expenditures.
These televised hearings provide the
Standing Committee with the opportunity
to address themes and issues that have
emerged concerning the initiatives of the
various entities.

Today will constitute the first time that
the Standing Committee has had the
opportunity to address in detail and in a
televised hearing the expenditures and
activities of the Inuit Ugausinginnik
Taiguusiliugtiit.

The 2012-13, 2013-14, and 2014-15
annual reports of the Inuit Ugausinginnik
Taiguusiliugtiit were tabled in the House
on October 21, 2015. The Standing
Committee is pleased to have the
opportunity today to discuss issues
relating to the mandate, responsibilities,
and activities of the Inuit Ugausinginnik
Taiguusiliugtiit over this period of time.
Members may also look forward to
hearing an update on the priorities and
future plans for activities of the current
board of directors of the Inuit
Ugausinginnik Taiguusiliugtiit.

In keeping with parliamentary practice,
the Standing Committee anticipates
reporting its findings and
recommendations to the Legislative
Assembly during the upcoming winter
sitting. Under Rule 91(5) of the Rules of
the Legislative Assembly, the
government will be required to table a
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formal response to our report within 120
days of its presentation.

I would like to conclude by addressing
some housekeeping matters.

This hearing is being televised live across
Nunavut on local community cable
stations and direct-to-home satellite
service. Transcripts of the hearing will be
posted on the Legislative Assembly’s
website.

For the benefit of our recording system, |
ask for witnesses to wait until | invite you
to speak before activating your
microphone.

I also ask witnesses to always go through
the Chair when responding to Members’
questions and interventions.

Members of the Standing Committee
have been provided with a number of
reports and other documentation for their
ease of reference during this hearing. For
the benefit of our witnesses and
interpreters, |1 ask Members to be precise
when quoting from or making reference
to specific documents.

With that, I will again welcome today’s
witnesses to this hearing. Thank you.

Mr. Enook, you’re on first.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you,
Madam Chairperson. Good morning. Ms.
Thompson, welcome, as well as your
executive director.

Madam Chairperson, if you will allow
me, | would like to ask a question in
regard to the opening comments before
we go to the contents of the report.
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First of all, as the Chair stated, this is the
very first time that the Inuit
Ugausinginnik Taiguusiliugtiit has
appeared before the Standing Committee
and we are very pleased that you’re
appearing before the Standing Committee
because the Inuit language is extremely
important and has to be amongst our
foremost of priorities within Nunavut. It
is blissful to hear we will be debating this
issue today.

With that being the situation, firstly I
want to ask a question, but let me start
with a comment here. Sometimes we
have to review bills as Members of the
Legislative Assembly when we’re
passing legislation. Our immediate
assumptions are that due to our review,
Nunavummiut know the contents of the
legislation. We may not be sending out
enough information communicating the
legislation, but we assume that
Nunavummiut understand what the
legislation is about.

If | can ask about that and you can
respond without elaborating too deeply
on the details. | believe | know what your
mandate is since | have all of the written
details in front of me. Can one of you
provide a short summary on what exactly
you do? | can see the written history, but
I would like Nunavummiut to hear from
you how you perceive your organization.
What exactly is your role and what are
your responsibilities? Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Enook. Ms. Thompson, can you
answer the question?

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. The Inuit
Language Authority was recently
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established and | am very pleased that
we’re starting to lay our foundation
down. We do have to get the information
out there to the general public, but we
were recently established. Being newly
established, it takes quite a while to get
things going.

We expect to get the information out to
the public regarding the legislation that
established the language authority. Due
to our recent creation, although it is a
cumbersome process, we do look forward
to working with the various stakeholders
and organizations to meet these
challenges. We have started the plans to
begin meetings on our mandate with
them.

I would like to ask our executive director,
Jeela, to supplement my response. Thank
you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Ms.
Pallug, can you supplement the response?

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Thank you. Yes, as the Inuit Language
Authority, our mandate is to assist
Nunavummiut and to support
stakeholders and the public in developing
terminology, as well as defining
terminology through a thorough review
of the context. This is especially true
when the board has to evaluate or create
terminology because it requires thorough
research to present to them and this
includes the applicable provisions of the
Inuit Language Protection Act.

As part of our mandate, we develop new
terminology if there is no word for it
already in Inuktitut. The legislation
contains many areas under our mandate
that are the responsibility of this office.
As an example, if a comparable Inuktitut
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word doesn’t exist, especially with
technical terms, a new term needs to be
developed.

This is part of the work we undertake, but
it also includes preservation of the old
dialectal terms in order to ensure we
don’t lose them. Obviously, we no longer
use many of these items in daily life as
our lifestyles have changed and some
words are slowly losing their place in
daily spoken Inuktitut. We have to gather
and collect all of this terminology before
it is lost. Now we are also looking at
ways of using these old Inuit words in
our current vocabulary, so we also review
that.

Further, part of our mandate under the
legislation is to develop proficiency
testing standards for Inuit who speak
Inuktitut. | can elaborate further on this
item later.

Also, when we are directed either by the
Minister, the Legislative Assembly, or
Standing Committees such as this one,
when we receive a directive from the
Minister of Languages to conduct a
review of a particular wording issue, we
have to comply. Everything is recorded
on every new development.

Again, because we’re the language
authority, the legislation also indicates
that we recognize individuals who are
trying to work hard in the language field.
We publicly recognize and show our
appreciation to individuals who are trying
to preserve or strengthen our language.
That’s from the Inuit Language
Protection Act and our mandate is set
through that legislation. Thank you,
Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
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Ms. Pallug. Mr. Enook.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you,
Madam Chairperson. Again if you would
allow me, 1 would like to ask another
question regarding your mandate, roles,
and responsibilities as the Inuit Language
Authority. Are you established
specifically for the Nunavut government
and who do you do all the work for? Who
makes requests for you to do certain
research? Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Enook. Ms. Thompson, please
respond.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. We are open to
all Nunavummiut. We especially work on
education so that people can learn the
Inuktitut language. I can tell you that we
are forgetting the old Inuktitut language.
We would like to revitalize the usage of
the old Inuktitut language and to teach it
to the school children in order for them to
be proficient in the Inuktitut language
and to work with other stakeholders in
order to do that.

We also work with Arctic College to
preserve and revitalize the old Inuit
language, especially in today’s age.
When some people speak in Inuktitut,
they start inserting English words. As the
Inuit Ugausinginnik Taiguusiliugtiit, we
would like to get requests to do certain
research so that we will become more
proficient in the Inuit language. As Jeela
stated earlier, for government employees
or those seeking employment, Inuktut
language proficiency testing can be
included as part of the evaluation of their
skills. We look forward to testing Inuktut
language proficiency in the future.
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Our executive director, Jeela, can
supplement my comments. Thank you,
Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Ms. Pallug, if you would
supplement her comments, please.

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Thank you. Yes, the government can
make requests for us to do particular
research, but not only the Nunavut
government. There are other
organizations that we are open to and
that’s outlined in the legislation. We have
the authority to advise the Nunavut
government that these certain terms will
now be used for particular subjects. We
can also support all Nunavummiut should
they make a request, whether they are a
private organization, a Nunavut
government department, or an entity.
That’s what we do as the Inuit
Ugausinginnik Taiguusiliugtiit. Thank
you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Pallug. Are you done? Are there any
questions on the opening comments? Mr.
Keyootak.

Mr. Keyootak (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. | would like to
thank the Inuit Language Authority
representatives for being here. It’s a very
important subject.

Reading the reports, | have another
question that was brought up by one of
my colleagues. Inuktut is now a new term
that is being used where we used to say
“Inuktitut” before. Is the word Inuktut
going to be used now instead of Inuktitut
throughout Nunavut? Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.
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Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Keyootak. That’s a very good
question. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. With respect
to the terms “Inuktut” or “Inuktitut,”
there are a lot of dialects being spoken.
There are Paallirmiut, Qairnirmiut, and
different dialects that are used all across
Nunavut. | can use an example of
ikpinnaittulinig. It’s used for people who
are diagnosed with terminal illness. We
have to hear from all communities first
before making a standardized term in
Inuktitut. We have to make sure that we
do all the research first before we apply a
certain term. Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Mr. Keyootak, are you
done? Mr. Joanasie.

Mr. Joanasie (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. Good morning
and welcome to the House, Ms.
Thompson and Ms. Pallug-Cloutier, as
well as the visitors in the gallery. Please
feel welcome to the House.

I have a question on the opening
comments where you compile Inuktitut
terminology looking at the level of
competence and grammar of the Inuit
language. You indicated that you’re
looking at the level of proficiency among
the Nunavut government staff, be it oral
or written. How would you do that?
There are some individuals who are very
proficient orally, but cannot write
Inuktitut or are not very proficient in
writing in the Inuit language. Thank you,
Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
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Mr. Joanasie. Ms. Thompson, if you
would respond, please.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. We are
working on assessing the Inuit language
proficiency of Nunavut government staff.
Usually in the schools, whether it’s in
Inuktut or English, the students are
assessed at what level they are in either
language. We are preparing a language
proficiency assessment tool and usually
there is a bonus awarded to government
employees who speak the Inuktut
language. With the help of Pirurvik, we
are starting to put that tool together so
that we can do assessments. This tool was
originally started by Pirurvik.

Our executive director can make a
supplement to that if you would allow
her, Madam Chairperson. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you.
Ms. Pallug, if you would respond please.

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Thank you, Siurjuk. Yes, we’re going to
be using this tool for both of the
languages and their comprehension level,
as well as their ability to write in the
language we are testing in. After the
assessment, we would identify each
person tested level of proficiency, areas
where they need further training or
classes to become more proficient or to
reach a new level. We have set it up not
just for spoken Inuktitut but also for the
written, reading, and comprehension
aspects of Inuktitut.

We have three categories identified
starting from beginner to intermediate
and advanced. This includes being
completely fluent. This would include
fluency determination, not just test them
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for proficiency, but also identify to each
person what courses or training they
could take to improve their Inuktitut
language proficiency. We would
recommend to the individual these ideas
to improve their proficiency and strength
in their language. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Pallug. Mr. Joanasie.

Mr. Joanasie (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. Thank you for
clarifying that. Do | then understand that
the language bonus that was referred to
earlier is given to government employees
based on their proficiency in the
language?

Further, Ms. Pallug-Cloutier just stated
that it will be categorized into three levels
of beginner, intermediate, and advanced.
Is the reason for breaking it down into
three levels due to being able to
determine the bonus applicable to our
government employees? Thank you,
Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Joanasie. Ms. Thompson, can you
answer the question?

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. We are
anticipating this in the future, but the
details still need to be fleshed out through
meetings with stakeholders. It is part of
our plans to address the growth of the
employee’s language skills from beginner
all the way up to advanced. There are a
lot of details related to proficiency
testing, but it will have other benefits as
everyone wants fluent Inuktitut-speaking
employees and that is our expectation of
everyone, no matter who they are, who |
am, or their title.
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It is our expectation that by cooperating
with others to strengthen Inuktut, it will
lead to more benefits and perhaps more
emphasis can be put on it. Any tiny
movement towards strengthening the
Inuit language is something we have to
discuss further. Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Are you done? Does
anyone else have questions? Mr.
Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak (interpretation):
Thank you very much, Madam
Chairperson. Yes, | want to refer back to
your opening comments. In reading them,
I noted that you acknowledge either
individuals or private businesses and
organizations that have contributed to
strengthening or preserving the Inuit
language on an annual basis.

The Inuit Ugausinginnik Taiguusiliugtiit
has a recognition system for language
preservation which, as it is written here,
is part of an annual report. It is good to
hear about this. With that being the case,
I wanted to ask: since we obviously have
many communities in Nunavut, with 25
communities spread out between the
Qikigtaaluk, Kivallig, and Kitikmeot
regions, how do you recognize
individuals? Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Mikkungwak. Ms. Thompson, can
you answer the question?

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you. This issue has been in the forefront
of our deliberations, the regional
overtones, and we will try to protect all
dialects throughout Nunavut. As an
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example, I will use Peter Irnig, who was
recognized for his contributions to the
Inuit language, as well as IBC, the
television company. We try to recognize
different entities, not just in the Baffin,
Kivallig, or Kitikmeot. We try to be
inclusive in thinking about all the people
in Kitikmeot, Kivalliq, and Baffin. We’re
concentrating on the three regions right
now.

We’re expecting that during the whole
month of December, we would like to see
nominations for organizations or
employees who are making contributions
to the Inuit language. It will be presented
through either the Internet or radio in the
smaller communities. Afterwards, the
board of directors will decide who to
recognize. That’s how we have set it up
and that’s towards the three regions.
Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Mr. Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak (interpretation):
Thank you very much, Madam
Chairperson. | thank her for the response.
My colleague asked a question earlier
and your executive director responded by
saying that some individuals are
beginners, some are intermediate, and
some are advanced in Inuktitut. Will you
be considering that or are you just
concentrating on highly proficient
speakers? Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Mikkungwak. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you. | will let my executive director
respond to that. Thank you.
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Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you.
Ms. Pallug.

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Thank you. We ask the public out there
about whom they would like to be
recognized that deal with languages and
they nominate a person who is working
hard on a project by filling out a
nomination form. It’s not just for
proficient speakers. It’s for people
working on the preservation of our
language. We want this to be exposed out
there because we want to recognize them.

Again, it’s not just for proficient
speakers. If there’s a student who is
working hard, for instance, in your
community or if you know of someone
who is working hard on language matters
and projects, even though they’re not
proficient speakers, as long they’re
working purposefully, they can be
nominated for recognition. They go
through a nomination process and the
board of directors makes a selection.

When we dealt with this process last
year, many names were submitted for
selection. The board of directors made
their own selections after carefully
reviewing the names of those who were
nominated for recognition. That’s how
they identify people who will be
recognized. Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Pallug. Are you done, Mr.
Mikkungwak? Anyone else?
(interpretation ends) Mr. Enook,
questions.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you,
Madam Chairperson. I’ll refer to the
annual report. In your 2014-15 annual
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report, you indicate that “Taiguusiliugtiit
shall identify needs and gaps relating to
Inuktut and will undertake and publish
research in these areas.” Can you indicate
any specific needs and gaps in research
relating to the Inuit language that you
have identified? Have you identified
exactly where research needs to be done?
I hope I’m understandable. Thank you,
Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Enook. Ms. Thompson, can you
answer the question?

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. There will be
different areas that it will be directed
towards when we are speaking about
proficiency in their language as we all
have expectations towards that goal.

Further, we will be involved in forums
with various organizations and
departments dealing with the Inuktitut
language or the writing system. When
meetings are held, we want to be
included in order to raise the profile and
to ensure our language is being learned
by our workers.

I think Jeela can respond better to that, so
I’ll hand it over to her. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Ms. Pallug.

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Thank you. As of now, we haven’t really
completed our plans identifying certain
areas that are still missing Inuktut
terminology. Therefore, it should be next
on the work list. Currently, it is only
when we are directed to review a specific
word to come up with a new term that we
can conduct our research. Yes, there are

Dobbedda®Y LCGJcL/DNY CRo
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A OAA®ILPAY aPbdcn® bosH5*G ¢
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AP DC o PeCP> Ldd NI><C
LALPEOC CLOM L ADAS DSb>I*Lo®
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<< 5%-d 5¢NA: Sdral®. [*a ¢
QOaA®ICAP/LYODUC PJ ApbDC
DSoD>PPCSH*MLC Acn<dno<seCoC,
D>d<US eI *NDJC P NcYP>LEHLCC
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L56PCNeq PAJS-CD>JCC Sb>APa % 5C. <Ll
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some areas we have identified where
terminology is missing in Inuktut and
have prepared ourselves in case these
areas are raised for review.

With respect to hockey, within our
annual report, we have identified some of
the terms related to hockey that are all in
English with no corresponding Inuktut
words. Even if we were to talk about it in
Inuktut, we would have to keep inserting
English wordage if we have no
corresponding Inuktut words. That’s just
an example. We haven’t directly
identified areas in that manner, although
we could proactively do that by
identifying areas requiring more Inuktut
terms and that should be part of our
future focus.

As we currently work on areas by
direction from government for terms such
as (interpretation ends) airbrakes,
(interpretation) the directive came from
the Motor Vehicles Division to develop
terminology for specific vehicular parts
or manuals that may require translation
into Inuktut. In cases where no words
exist, we receive direction to research the
word to see what Inuktut term we would
use.

Our office doesn’t direct its research on
its own. We try to provide assistance to
outside agencies or individuals who
identify words that have no
corresponding Inuktut words. Thank you,
Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Pallug. Mr. Enook.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you,
Madam Chairperson. What the heck is
hockey?
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>>| aughter

Indeed, we are in that situation,
unfortunately. Madam Chairperson, in
your 2014-15 annual report, you indicate
that “*“Taiguusiliuqtiit participated in the
planning for the 2015 Inuugatta
conference.”

Madam Chairperson, I believe | am on
record as stating that during that
conference, Mr. Joanasie and | were able
to briefly attend one of the sessions, but it
was unfortunate that all the Members
weren’t able to attend due to the
Legislative Assembly sitting at the
scheduled time of that conference. It
should be the entire elected body, but
some of the Members here take extreme
pride in our mother tongue and we are
extremely protective of our language. It
would have been prudent for us to attend,
but the timing wasn’t right due to the
conflicting meetings at that time.

Nonetheless, | am happy to read about
the meeting in the report that was
completed. | was able to peruse the
discussion items and accomplishments. |
wish you the best of luck in future
meetings. Can you indicate if you
provided any presentations or
publications during this conference and,
if so, what were they? Thank you,
Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Enook. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. | will respond
that the people really like hockey and
during the playoffs, Charlie Panigoniak
did a play-by-play in Inuktut. In Arviat,
when the hockey game is coming on,
even people who are out hunting go right

DA ®IC
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HIPSo<dcG*LC LSDASDUOAC oa DU OAC
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back to town. That’s how much we enjoy
hockey.

Back to the topic of the Inuugatta
Conference, only recently did | become
chairperson and | can say that we would
like to be involved. We would be
interested in getting requests for
terminology and responding to them. We
would like to be able to provide them.
Our executive director, Jeela, will
supplement that if she can. Thank you,
Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Ms. Pallug.

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Thank you. Let me first explain the
Inuugatta Conference. It is put together
by the Department of Culture and
Heritage, NTI, and the Languages
Commissioner. They work together to
hold that meeting. Taiguusiliugtiit did not
really take part in the planning. However,
once we took part in the conference, we
understood that Taiguusiliugtiit is part of
this whole effort to preserve the
language. We saw how we could further
support the Inuit language in sectors such
as education or economic development.
That is the type of terminology that
Taiguusiliugtiit can work on and we have
tried to help along those lines.

At the time, | was with ITK and at the
conference, | was a representing ITK.
Although the Inuit Ugausinginnik
Taiguusiliugtiit’s mandate is to work on
things only for Nunavut, they still have to
consider other issues that ITK works on,
which impacts all Canadian Inuit. We
wanted to see if ITK could support
efforts in the Inuit language in Nunavut
and that’s how we supported that
conference. Thank you, Madam
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Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Pallug. Mr. Enook.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you,
Madam Chairperson. On page 4 of your
annual report, you indicate that one of the
topics of discussion during the Inuugatta
Conference was “The need for
standardized Inuktut terminology in a
number of domains, including education
and media.” Can you indicate what work
your agency is currently undertaking to
develop standardized terminology in
areas such as education and media? |
hope that makes that sense. Thank you,
Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Enook. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you. It’s one of our goals. We want to
decide on things and we have decided on
certain things because we are proficient
Inuktut speakers. For example, when |
was a child, my parents would provide
advice as well as traditional Inuit customs
that made us think, got lodged in our
brains and into our hearts, and that is
where they reside.

Today, we don’t receive that type of
advice person to person anymore, as we
depend more on computers and on
literature-based materials. We have to try
to brainstorm on ways to incorporate our
language to ensure it remains standing
and strong. Our Inuit language will live
for many more generations and that is our
expectation. We will continue to voice
that position.

This initiative hasn’t been started yet, but
it forms one of our tenets of discussing
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issues with organizations and different
government departments. We need to
discuss ways to keep the Inuit language
strong and to preserve it, especially when
there are many languages spoken now,
and to prepare for a future, not for now
when the majority still speaks the
language, but a future when we use all
the different dialects.

Jeela has been working on that and I’ll
hand it over to her. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Ms. Pallug.

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Thank you. To elaborate on the written
statements, it was relayed to us that it
needs to be finished and have the results
published. Yes, we agree with that
assessment. We didn’t immediately put
down the first things that were identified.
Only through debating which words such
as those related to education being too
different dialectally, how can we
standardize them? Those are the kinds of
questions we looked at in identifying this
issue, but it was only identified.

This is something we hope to work on in
the future, especially when they are
identified as English terms related to
education, such as the word
(interpretation ends) classroom,
(interpretation) which is translated
differently in each community school. It
can be called a room, a small classroom,
or some other word that causes
differences when trying to standardize
translations. This is what surfaced during
our meeting about the dialectal
differences even for common words. We
looked at standards in that light that we
will have to undertake.
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This also applies to economic
development terminology, especially new
technology which will require the
creation of a new Inuktitut term. In trying
to publicize the standardized term, what
medium will we use to inform the public?
There are many new emerging
technologies and social media, such as
(interpretation ends) Twitter, Facebook,
multimedia, (interpretation) that everyone
understands in English, but they don’t
have corresponding Inuktut words to be
readily understood. The need for work in
this area was only identified. Yes, it is
true that we have to focus on these types
of challenges soon. Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Pallug. Mr. Enook.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you,
Madam Chairperson. Perhaps if | ask this
question: up to now, what initiatives
other than word terminology has the
office undertaken or are you working on
issues behind those lines? As an example,
| asked a question earlier related to
education as well as communications in
today’s technological world. What
initiatives separate from terminology do
you have on the go within your office?
Thank you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Enook. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you. We have deliberated on many issues
aside from terminology. To use this
example of one word, igloo, most Inuit
right away come up with an idea of a
snow building. However, the details
included in making a snow house are
very intricate, details such as the proper
snow to use as insulation, the right type
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of snow to use for your blocks, and the
list goes on. The same applies to sod huts
and all of the critical details included in
the work and the connotations with that
one word can spread a long ways. There
are many issues related to words we are
currently missing. By thinking of related
wordage that can spill out from one word,
we started from that precept.

My executive director, Jeela, will
continue with the response. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Ms. Pallug, can you
answer that question?

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Thank you. What he’s talking about, the
education and media fields, we have been
asked to work on those by the previous
committee in order to make sure the old
terminology would not be lost. We’re
still working on a diverse number of
projects that we have not yet completed
nor published. For example, mining has
been a topic of discussion for quite a
while now. Inuit are now involved in all
aspects of mining. Whenever there is a
proposal to start a mine or information
about a mine, Inuit also have to be
consulted.

There are examples of mining
terminology where there is no Inuktitut
word for a term such as uranium.
Uranium has been referred to using many
different Inuktut terms over the years,
including a term referring to a never-
ending substance or something like that.
These are examples of the type of work
and projects we are involved in. A lot of
the work is ongoing and not completed,
so it hasn’t be published. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
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Ms. Pallug. Mr. Enook.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you,
Madam Chairperson. You indicate that
one of the topics of discussion during the
Inuugatta Conference was writing
systems for the Inuit language. When
people think about getting a new writing
system, there are those who don’t agree
with the idea and those who agree with it.
Right now, not everybody is in
agreement about this matter. What is the
position of the Inuit Ugausinginnik
Taiguusiliugtiit on this issue? Thank you,
Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Enook. Ms. Thompson, can you
respond to that?

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): |1 would
like our executive director, Jeela, to
respond to that. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Ms. Pallug.

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation): Up
to now, the Taiguusiliugtiit board has
been discussing that and they know that
this is a very important matter. We are
aware that in the Inuit Language
Protection Act, it states that the writing
system issue is to be worked on by the
Taiguusiliugtiit group.

At present, Nunavut uses two writing
systems. There is the Roman orthography
and syllabic systems. As a group,
Taiguusiliugtiit is aware of their
responsibilities with respect to the
writing system and the amount of work
that goes along with these
responsibilities. We know that we must
consult with the Inuit on this matter.

It’s true, as you said, there are people
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who don’t support a new writing system
at all and who don’t want
standardization. They want to remain
with a dual orthography writing system.
There are other people who say that if it’s
going to improve education and if it’s
going to make our language stronger,
then we should try to use a single
orthography writing system that will help
us preserve our language and help people
learn our language.

As the Taiguusiliugtiit group, we know
that we have to work on this and we have
to consult with Inuit. We will be
consulting with Inuit to see how they feel
about this issue. It is in our mandate to
review the possibility of having a single
writing system for Inuktitut in Nunavut.
Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Pallug. Mr. Enook.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you,
Madam Chairperson. Do I understand
you said that the Taiguusiliugtiit group
has not taken a position on that? My
question was: what is the position of the
Taiguusiliugtiit board about the efforts to
create a single writing system? |
understand from your response that you
don’t have a position on it and that you
will have to consult with Nunavummiut
first. Do I understand that correctly?
Thank you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Enook. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. Yes, we’re still
working on it. It’s evident that we will
have to work on that and make a decision
some time in the future because Inuit of
Nunavut, compared to the rest of the

CL*a AcHo DSb>YAGC®CE,
Ab®AA*MCNALLA DL IDA S
ICBPYSInNeDC, LSPva 1D5bCCSLC

0a2 D> CALA*QAS, b¥r/NN*aPLC QL

Ac*PC PSHSHECA DN Ac®o<SosIC
JpoLePCP>o®<E PSb>ICN® 0 >
NP cPCDod®<E A, AN IC>IST
NNGD>ISTe IDGAP®C D>Sb>YCN® ot
N>LCNebe PPN 5% G C <Ll
Ac®o<eNENRcP NPT,

CLbd< A“5NC CAJ/DSeNbde C ATl
Acn<bndsbo* Mo asaA®//L*LC.
JPPa A4\ bbb*o G JLod® oNt s C®bedo™L
Ao%a® Sbo% AALPYSHSLAYLC. Acn<bh*NC
Ac*Ld CL%a SPIrsPyn<sbsose JC>I/STe
NNS>ISbcPaSL*LCC oa DLTDC. Sdy*al™.

Ab/R|DBCSL: sdheal™ [N <%, MC Aok,

Aob: sdbeal® AYRPBCSe, DPYD*LSHA
CAJYcD>seNede CN AL DPCSe/L*NeC,

JdA®INNaAeb>led CAJ/cD>SeNede bNLANC

AL CAT™L IC>IST
NNGP>Sb<bSas_IC SboS DPCey| RC
AT *g®? DPPedsed™, DPCSe/L*PCNDY.
L5 DPPSed® 5L, DPCE*DY P
PN DS 5Y 0 PHDYSHNCN o,
CAL®aSbA DPP2*L? Sdyeal® Ab/RPCE®,

Ab/XPCSe: sgueq [ C Aob M CHhe,

CLhe: sgheal™® AP/RDC® A, Ac<NC CLa
A Acndn R c<dLNJC /SabNl. PY<lo
Y20\ CL%a AFLPYn<Shbec n o <ICDC
aoar*TlLc™ oo, AN
ArAvLegepdbGeC oa 2T

28




world, are a minority population. There
are other different races living in the
world.

We will need support in the future. For
example, Greenlanders and Yup’ik don’t
use the syllabic writing system. Also in
Nunavut, some communities don’t use
syllabics. We’re looking for ways to see
who can give us support some time in the
future. Also through our research, we
believe that we need to consult with
different communities and different
regions, as well as having a meeting to
consult with other entities. Therefore, at
this time, we haven’t fully grasped the
beginning or initiation of this, Madam
Chairperson. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Mr. Enook.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you,
Madam Chairperson. Perhaps you might
not be able to respond to this question
because | understand, as you stated, both
the chairperson and the executive director
are quite new to their positions. 1 will
understand if you aren’t able give a
response. I’m sure there’s a report or
documentation somewhere.

The previous executive director of the
Inuit Ugausinginnik Taiguusiliugtiit
travelled to Greenland to meet with the
country’s language secretariat and
discussed its operations, business
translation training program, and
translation services. Can you indicate
what best practices or methods for
revitalizing the Inuit language you have
gained through this meeting and what
specific outcomes from this meeting have
allowed you to improve your office’s
work in Nunavut? Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.
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Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Enook. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. Both of us are
quite new and we need to make
improvements. They went over there to
do fact-finding, but in the future, if we
are going to attend any conferences, we
want to get as much information as
possible, but we also want to bring
something to offer. That’s one of the
areas we want to improve upon because
this was not set up properly due to high
staff turnover. I’m sorry it occurred that
way, but we’re now beginning to settle
down and we would like to get additional
information from meetings in the future,
and do some fact-finding as well as to be
able to provide our information and
position to them. That has been our
thought in that regard. Thank you,
Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Mr. Enook.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you,
Madam Chairperson. A number of
concerns that this standing committee has
heard on previous occasions relate to the
perceived lack of clarity on the roles of
the various language bodies, including
your agency, the Languages
Commissioner, and the Minister of
Languages. Can you indicate how your
agency publicizes its role to the public?
Through correspondence? Through the
media? Through the radio? Can you
indicate how your agency publicizes its
role? Thank you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Enook. Ms. Thompson, can you
answer that question?
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Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you. We worked a bit on that and we
acknowledged some work that has been
done. We expect that this will be
resolved. We would like to have our own
website. Perhaps I’ll have my executive
director, Jeela, elaborate further on that.
Thank you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Ms. Pallug.

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Thank you. There are various language
entities and we know there’s confusion.
Some concerns are expressed to the
Languages Commissioner, even though
it’s our responsibility. Due to the
confusion by the public, a couple of years
ago, we developed a poster to define and
publicize the roles and responsibilities of
the Languages Commissioner, the
Minister of Languages, and the Inuit
Ugausinginnik Taiguusiliugtiit, and to
indicate the differences between the roles
and responsibilities of these three
language entities. We provided that
poster to the public.

When we go to the communities, we
usually go on the local radio station to
talk about our roles and responsibilities
as the Inuit Ugausinginnik
Taiguusiliugtiit. If anyone wants further
information, they can call our office. We
try to provide all that information when
we go to the communities. In regard to
the website that we want to develop as
part of our efforts to inform the public,
we will be producing that website and we
may possibly have it up before
Christmas. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Pallug. Are you done, Mr. Enook?
Mr. Tom Sammurtok.
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Mr. Tom Sammurtok (interpretation):
Thank you, Madam Chairperson. | know
that we have to deal with the Inuit
Ugausinginnik Taiguusiliugtiit, but I
know that some of my constituents would
like to hear English, so I’ll be asking my
question in English. Thank you.

(interpretation ends) On page 5 of your
2014-15 annual report, you indicate that
your agency has collaborated with the
Department of Executive and
Intergovernmental Affairs and the
Pirurvik Centre to develop Inuit language
competency levels for the government’s
proposed language incentive.
(interpretation) It’s on (interpretation
ends) page 5.

This Standing Committee has heard
concerns from the Office of the
Languages Commissioner regarding a
lack of standardized competency levels
for private translation services. Can you
indicate if the competency levels that you
are currently developing will be made
available to private sector entities that
may wish to access translation services
outside of the public service?
(interpretation) Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.

Chairperson: Thank you, Mr.
Sammurtok. (interpretation) Ms.
Thompson, can you answer that
question?

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you. This is a daily operations question,
so I’ll ask my executive director, Jeela, to
respond. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Ms. Pallug, can you
respond?

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
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Yes. Thank you. The Inuktut
standardized competency level for
government entities, to elaborate further
to what Ms. Thompson said, will be set
by the government so that they can
provide more benefits for the Inuktut
proficiency and competency levels.
We’re now setting up the standardized
competency levels for the government
and if they qualify, the more that they’re
trained, the higher the pay they will
receive. That’s what we’re working on
within the government.

However, what we need to work on,
according to the legislation, is in the area
of interpreter/translators. They should be
recognized by the Inuit Ugausinginnik
Taiguusiliugtiit and given accreditation. |
believe we will have to work on that.
Perhaps if there are private
interpreter/translators, they could take the
standardized competency test, but for the
question you’re asking about, the work is
more for government
interpreter/translators. It is not for
interpreter/translators that work in the
private sector. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Pallug. Mr. Sammurtok.

Mr. Tom Sammurtok: Thank you,
Madam Chairperson. (interpretation)
Also on page 5, (interpretation ends) you
indicate that “a preliminary language
assessment test was developed to
evaluate the language skills of employees
and, where necessary, to help pace them
in an Inuktut training program.” Can you
indicate if your agency has finalized this
preliminary assessment test and, if so,
how many individuals or organizations
are qualified to evaluate the performance
of individuals who take this assessment
test? (interpretation) Thank you, Madam
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Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Sammurtok. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. We’re now
starting to initiate the work on that and
also the adult education instructors’
assessment test. We will try to provide it
any way we can so that we can enhance
the Inuit language. We haven’t initiated
the work on that, but it is part of our
mandate and we will have to meet with
organizations such as adult education
centres about how we can set this up
properly, how we can do a proper
assessment test, and how we can assess
them as to where they need further
training.

Perhaps Jeela can supplement my
response. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Ms. Pallug.

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Thank you. We did skill testing with our
staff. Although we may be Inuit, some of
us are not very proficient in Inuktut. We
have already looked at that through the
questionnaire. We will be doing more
assessments on how much Inuktut
language is being used at the workplace.

We just completed the assessment on the
Quittiktuq dialect. | speak the Amittuq
dialect. We have completed the dialect
assessment test. Just yesterday, we did an
assessment test on my co-workers to see
how it works. If we need to make
improvements on the assessment test, we
will do so because we will have to do
testing on government staff. I’m talking
about the North Baffin dialects.
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We will change the dialect and develop
another assessment test on the South
Baffin dialects and Inuinnagtun. Those
will be next. Also next year, this will be
set and we will expand our assessment
test to other regions for different dialects.
At this time, we have just initiated the
work and we haven’t started the
assessment test on the public. We just did
an assessment test yesterday on our staff
and we will do more work on that. Thank
you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Pallug. Mr. Sammurtok.

Mr. Tom Sammurtok: | think she read
my mind because she led right into my
next question. Qujannamiik for that.

(interpretation) When are we going to see
the evaluation forms and results? Thank
you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Sammurtok. Ms. Pallug.

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Thank you. We are going to be taking
them out very soon. The (interpretation
ends) North Baffin (interpretation) dialect
assessment has been done and our staff is
now looking at making the final changes.
Once that is approved, we will then move
on to the other dialects. The
(interpretation ends) South Baffin
(interpretation) and Inuinnagtun
assessment forms are going to be done
right after the (interpretation ends) North
Baffin (interpretation) version is done.
After that, on April 1, we will be looking
at other dialects. The first one, the
(interpretation ends) North Baffin
(interpretation) dialect assessment is
done. We will be focusing on the
(interpretation ends) South Baffin
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(interpretation) dialect and Inuinnagtun
and we would like to have them
completed before March 31. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Pallug. Mr. Sammurtok, are you
done? We will take a 15-minute break.

>>Committee recessed at 10:17 and
resumed at 10:36

Chairperson: Welcome back,
everybody. | hope you all had a good,
short break. Mr. Alex Sammurtok, you’re
next.

Mr. Sammurtok (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. On page 3 of
your annual report, you indicate that
“Taiguusiliugtiit is in the early stages of
developing a terminology database that
will provide Nunavummiut with easy
access to the terminology that it
researches and documents.” Can you
indicate when you anticipate that this
database will be completed and available
to the public? Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Sammurtok. Ms. Thompson, can you
answer the question?

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you. | apologize for not looking at the
light indicator before I started speaking.

Before I respond, | would like to
recognize some of our board members.
Behind me from the Kitikmeot region are
Miriam Aglukkaq from Gjoa Haven and
Rosemary Meyok. They’re both from the
Kitikmeot region and they’re in the
gallery. I am very pleased that they are
here.
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We haven’t quite completed working on
the database, but we’re looking forward
to having it available soon. | will refer
this question to our executive director.
Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Ms. Pallug, if you would
respond, please.

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Thank you. As we indicated earlier, we
are compiling this terminology database.
We’re currently working on the website
and we have requested Pirurvik to build
it. Once we have compiled the
terminology, it will be available to the
public and to the people of Nunavut as
soon as it’s completed. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Pallug. I would like to welcome our
visitors. Mr. Sammurtok.

Mr. Sammurtok (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. On page 6 of
your annual report, you indicate that your
agency, upon request, provided assistance
to the (interpretation ends) departments
of Justice, Economic Development and
Transportation, Culture and Heritage, and
Health, (interpretation) and IBC.
(interpretation ends) Can you indicate
how your agency promotes its role and
services to the departments, public
agencies, and other organizations in
Nunavut? (interpretation) Thank you,
Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Sammurtok. (interpretation ends) |
think that was touched on already, but
Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): 1 would
like to refer this question to Ms. Pallug.
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Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Ms. Pallug.

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation): |
apologize. | didn’t hear your question
because | was looking for the page
number you were referring to. Please ask
your question again. Thank you.

Chairperson: Mr. Sammurtok.

Mr. Sammurtok (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. On page 6 of
your annual report, you indicate that your
agency, upon request, provides assistance
to the government (interpretation ends)
departments of Justice, Economic
Development and Transportation, Culture
and Heritage, and Health, and the Inuit
Broadcasting Corporation. Can you
indicate how your agency promotes its
role and services to the departments,
public agencies, and other organizations
in Nunavut? (interpretation) Thank you,
Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Sammurtok. Ms. Pallug.

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Thank you. We promote our work by
way of our employees, Nunatsiaq News,
documents, and other means. We try to
inform people of how we can provide
assistance and we will continue to make
improvements in that area. Mary
indicated in her opening comments that
we know that we have to promote
ourselves more and that we haven’t really
been communicating the decisions we
have made. We will try to do more to
promote and get the information out there
to make sure that people know what
services we provide. We will use all

sdbeql.
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media. Currently, we are using word of
mouth. The government departments
know that we are available, but we do
know that we have to do more
promotional work for the people of
Nunavut and we will plan accordingly.
Thank you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Pallug. Mr. Sammurtok.

Mr. Sammurtok (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. Can you
indicate if your agency was unable to
provide support to any departments or
organizations that requested your
assistance during the 2014-15 fiscal year?
Thank you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Sammurtok. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. We are still
trying to get organized. As | indicated
earlier, we are making changes and there
has been some turnover in our office, but
I can say that last year, we had a meeting
with the Department of Justice upon
request. We reviewed some of their
terminology in Inuktut. That was the
beginning. Again, we would like to
provide more support to the various
departments. We look forward to
working with the Department of Health
and compiling their terminology, and we
would like to focus on mental health and
health issues.

We would like to work more closely
together with the departments and
organizations in Nunavut. For example,
with IBC, we would like to have a close
working relationship with such entities to
compile terminology, but we all have to
work together as various organizations in
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order to compile the proper terminology
and we do need the help of Nunavut and
various organizations. We would like to
use different media to do that. Thank
you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Mr. Sammurtok.

Mr. Sammurtok (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. This will be
my last question. On page 8 of your
annual report, you indicate that you did
not establish any committees during the
2014-15 fiscal year. Is your agency
forming any committees for the 2015-16
fiscal year? Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Sammurtok. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. We have
different forms of committees for health
or education or other focus groups that
were started last year, but we decided that
we will not focus on that for now until
we get our immediate needs and research
done. That will be our priority for this
year.

The committees didn’t meet very often
because it’s very costly. We put it on the
backburner for now. We had to make that
decision. The committees were very
useful in compiling Inuit language
terminology and focused on specific
terms, but it was very costly. We put it on
the backburner for now and we will
consider it again some time later. Thank
you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Are you done, Alex? Mr.
Enook.
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Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you,
Madam Chairperson. Let me ask a
question while we are on this subject. On
page 6 of your report, you indicate that
you assisted the Department of Justice
“with approximately 150 terms used in
legislation and other legal documents.” |
just want to get clarification on this. As
an example, during your research into
these terms, what was the usual practice?
Did they approach your office or did you
and your staff have to go to the
departmental offices or was this done in a
board meeting setting?

There must have been an extensive
amount of time spent on research for the
development of these terms. Who exactly
did the work? Was your board involved
or was it just the staff? I’m just trying to
envision how the work was
accomplished. What kinds of
arrangements were made to this end?
Thank you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Enook. Ms. Thompson, can you
respond?

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you. | believe | partially answered that
question earlier. When the court
interpreters were having a meeting, the
past chairperson and | were invited to
attend, which we did. Since this is Ms.
Pallug’s responsibility, she will answer
the question about the arrangements.
Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Ms. Pallug.

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Thank you. With respect to the 150 plus
words that were reviewed as part of the
research on terminology done for the
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Department of Justice, the primary
research focus was on which terms were
currently already translated into Inuktitut,
whether these terms were appropriate and
acceptable or if they ought to develop
entirely new terms. That was the purpose
of this study.

The participants who were invited
attended this meeting were Mary and
Elijah, who was the chairperson at the
time, as well as some staff members.
They went to the meeting to review the
terminology totalling 150 words. They
didn’t really come up with any new terms
at that time; it was more of a review of
the current words to see if they were
appropriate for the time being. Thank
you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Pallug. Mr. Enook.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you,
Madam Chairperson. | want to be
completely clear in my understanding as
to the process. | was just using the 150
words or thereabouts as an example. Ms.
Thompson and Mr. Erkloo attended this
meeting. At that meeting where you
collaborated, once the committee was
satisfied, and to add to that chain of
thought, when you were looking at a new
term that was agreed to that would now
become the standardized term, if
applicable, didn’t that mean your board
had to first approve it before the term
became official? Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Enook. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you. At that time, Elijah and | were only
invited to provide guidance on this
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matter. At that meeting, we had various
representatives, even people from
Greenland as well as from different
organizations. At that time, no new terms
were introduced as it was largely a
review of existing terminology to see
whether the terms were adequate. We
collaborated with other Inuit
representatives, whether they were from
Canada or not, to hear what word Inuit
used for that process. We weren’t looking
for new terminology for future usage, but
later on as we reviewed these 150 terms,
definitions arose.

However, this still requires much more
thought to develop these terms. Our sole
reason for being the Inuit Ugausinginnik
Taiguusiliugtiit is to prepare for the
future. We anticipate more visits and
invitations to other meetings to examine
the issues that require approval by our
body and that require our
recommendation for changes. That is
what we expect in our immediate future.

At the time, we only attended the meeting
and there were neither changes nor new
justice-related terms. Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you
as well, Ms. Thompson. Mr. Enook. No?
Okay. Thank you. Mr. Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak (interpretation):
Thank you very much, Madam
Chairperson. In your annual report,
specifically on page 8, | wish | could say
the right term in Inuktut, but it is six plus
two to me. You indicate that
Taiguusiliugtiit “continues to be involved
with the development of competency
levels and tools to evaluate Inuktut
proficiency as part of the Government of
Nunavut’s proposed language incentive.”
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With that, can you indicate if individuals
that meet these competency levels and
successfully complete the related
language assessment tests will receive
any certification that demonstrates their
Inuit language skills? Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Mikkungwak. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you. We have just started to visit the
issue and gathering information for the
future. Part of the work has already been
undertaken. We have recognized
individuals for their work on preserving
the Inuit language and those who have
made contributions to others.

Earlier this morning within Jeela’s report,
we spoke about the people who require
further training or who are at the
intermediate level, as well as advanced
speakers. The issues have just been
identified and we are looking at ways to
have it set up properly. It is also after this
work that it would include parameters for
recognition of individuals or certification.
We will use every available avenue to
brainstorm with our fellow Inuit and we
will support any initiatives towards
fluency in Inuktitut or in the written
language. We will support that.

Another thing we envision is the
accreditation process when workers
complete their training or have passed the
competency testing. Alternatively, even if
they are just beginners, as Jeela reported
earlier, the worker is working hard to
attain language skills and we can also
recognize their work through
certification. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,

C*aPN“HJ CAL araAYASEHABAY Cod<d
ADOAS ASba AYeN>YC 5%GC C<do™L
SprPeYLb<C PSb o a /<< C 5T,
SHD>AN®ECNONC Sh*NGLH<E AcCL D> <N
QA APICI® DabP>a b<C A obIC
D>SboJ*aSa ™ AN N5 CHIPCD 5N
AcCnYD RN, e ACHG®L? La,
AbIRDCsb,

A/ RU>CS®: sdheql, MC MR, N e,

Cthe: sgbal® CLea PSob<<c<dLAA%Q 6N
bi/o<SL C2*L <L AD%/Lcdosed® 5N
AL AcC®/beC®/LLCC Ldo*L AoAC
Dsb>IeNeg® b PNH®Ioe <H > Do?’L<.of
AoBN™.0C.

Cedd D><c_se peD>< Dobbe DeCNC
Ac®odbb*ondc*o® dd*c* Lo Do®
Sb>ML . PDob. CLbd<
Acn<dnRec<lo<IchGNJ Sbos®
Jsepel | cNAGLSLLE. Sbose, PYo*LJ“c CAL
CeddeCP>® AcP>Yan 5N AcCnP>Yot
<AK®BCSTSI“HFC abaAPC <o
CAbdo™L. Sbo% <**MegcN* o
AFLCDSBNNONE ABBNSC AbY®IAZLo<IGEC.
A5 DbA TP PR HAFC NNGICNLSTT®.
CL®a AbN®DS/Lc 5.

C>Iy2CCD>s® Cra
AcCEP>IbIA*an<dc® Acta<Gob<e 5% gC
DR HGC ShPALST<LE Coa., DR HLGC
SHD>ALENA*Meb o<, e Dabbe DSLE,
PBAPSLE AL LS, CLea cCP>e

AcC® NN 5NJ CAPINJa s

a5 APIC*Jd o NJC, Sdyal™,

Ab//|PCSL: Sdhoql,

44




Ms. Thompson. Mr. Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak (interpretation):
Thank you very much, Madam
Chairperson. To rephrase my question,
government employees, especially those
working in offices, generally have their
various certificates hanging on their
office walls. This includes their education
diplomas, certificates of proficiency, and
S0 on.

When we talk about fluency in spoken
Inuktut as well as proficiency in reading
and writing, will a certificate be
developed that acknowledges their
acquired skills? To use this example, if |
received a certificate as part of my
training, 1 would want to show it off. Is
your office working on issues such as this
where we could see certified Inuit
workers, no matter where they are from,
having certificates of fluency in oral and
written Inuktitut? Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Mikkungwak. Ms. Thompson, can
you answer that question?

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you. Also, Ms. Pallug will supplement
my response, but with respect to that, our
elders are very learned and
knowledgeable and they should have
been properly recognized for their
expertise even through university degrees
as recognition of their vast knowledge. It
is unfortunate that we didn’t do so when
we had the chance.

Even though that is the case now, we
have future expectations to encourage the
development of the Inuit language. We
may also be looking at special certificates
related to that and the desire to learn is
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part of the process.

Ms. Pallug will supplement my response.
Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Ms. Pallug.

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Thank you. With respect to your
question, yes, a certificate would be
issued to the person we are testing that
would indicate their level. It would
indicate their level of Inuktitut fluency
after testing and it would include a report
to the supervisor stating that in order for
the employee to move higher, they would
need a training plan. The employee could
pass this report on to their supervisor
outlining that if they take courses, they
would be able to move up to another
level in Inuktitut, so they could request a
training plan to be followed.

These are the types of initiatives we are
looking at forming part of this
certification process, not just having a
certificate outlining that their competency
or fluency is at this level. There is an
additional layer. Once the employee
knows their particular skill level and that
they have options in taking courses, and
having these courses identified that
would enable them to move up to the
next level would allow them to show the
report to their supervisor and allow them
to set a training plan.

That is how we envision it and how we
want to implement this process. Yes, we
would provide a certificate outlining their
current status as well as include training
courses they can take to improve their
level. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
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Ms. Pallug. Mr. Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak (interpretation):
Thank you, Madam Chairperson. Still on
page 8 of your report, you indicate that
you “assisted the Department of Health
with an Inuktut-English health
phrasebook with over 250 words and
expressions related to the human body,
health and illness” so that Inuit will be
better understood when they go to the
health centres. Can you indicate how
many employees and board members
from your agency participated in this
project? Thank you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Mikkungwak. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you. This will be an ongoing project that
our office was involved in, and Ms.
Pallug will supplement that. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Ms. Pallug, can you
respond?

Ms. Palluq (interpretation): Thank you.
At the Taiguusiliugtiit office, there aren’t
many employees who work there, so we
have to work collaboratively on certain
projects. For some projects, individual
employees are tasked with completing
the initial translations of the English
terminology into Inuktut and there is an
editor who reviews all written documents
for mistakes, written errors, and whatnot.
Sometimes a project is handled by one
employee while others require full
collaboration of the employees. In other
cases, when we as a team can’t come up
with the correct term or if we seem to be
stuck in our deliberations, we then turn to
our board members.
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With respect to your question, we could
respond that this was mainly dealt with
by one person and then others are
collaborative efforts and some require the
assistance of the board of directors to
determine the right term. We try to work
together, but with respect to your
question about the 250 terms related to
the human body, health, and illness, it
was mainly done by one worker, but
there was an editor also checking for
errors. That is how we work together.
Thank you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Pallug. Mr. Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak (interpretation):
Thank you very much, Madam
Chairperson. | really want to ask more
questions. My colleague asked me if |
was done. No, I’m not done yet.

>>[ aughter

Can you indicate how often your board
meets with the Department of Culture
and Heritage’s Official Languages
Division or the Office of the Languages
Commissioner? Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Mikkungwak. Ms. Thompson, can
you respond to that?

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you. We have to work with the
Department of Culture and Heritage and
help each other, and whenever one of
their staff members quit, we support each
other with staff members like that. Not
only that, but we have helped each other
in other ways as well. We also work
closely with the Office of the Languages
Commissioner.
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We consult each other because we’re all
Inuit and that’s the Inuit way. We have to
work with each other. The only way
we’re going to be able to stand is by
helping each other, so that’s what we do.
We haven’t had any official meetings
with them, but we do support each other
like with the Department of Culture and
Heritage through our staff and the
Languages Commissioner. We do want to
continue to keep on working with them
and meet with them and that’s what we
expect. Thank you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Mr. Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak (interpretation):
Thank you very much, Madam
Chairperson. Along the same lines, in
your annual report on page 10, you
indicate that one of your 2015-16
priorities is to “Implement the approved
board training plan” so that new board
members can understand what it means to
be a board member. Can you explain
what this training plan entails? Thank
you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Mikkungwak. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): When |
first became a board member, they held a
training workshop this past August with
orientation to see what our thoughts were
and what our vision is for the future.
When you are a new board member,
you’re unsure of what you’re supposed to
do. If we needed to learn how to type
Inuktut, they tried to teach us how to do
that on a computer. This kind of
orientation is going to continue for all
new members. Sometimes when you’re a
new board member, you don’t know what
the by-laws and policies are and what the
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mandate is, so we had orientation when
we were new board members and that’s
going to continue. Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Mr. Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak (interpretation):
Thank you very much, Madam
Chairperson. On the same page, you also
indicate that one of your 2015-16
priorities is to “Research and publish new
grammar resources that describe a
number of Inuktut dialects spoken in
Nunavut.” | know that you’re working on
this, but can you indicate when you may
be able to publish that? Thank you,
Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Mikkungwak. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. With respect
to this issue, | mentioned earlier how
research will be beginning. If you look at
the dialectal differences, there are many
communities in Nunavut and in some
cases, a community may have more than
one dialect, and all of them are precious.
You don’t want to inadvertently say the
wrong thing dialectally. We are trying to
strategize for our future collection of
these terms, such as the dialect for
Qainnirmiut, Haunigtuurmiut,
Utkuhiksalingmiut, Paallirmiut, and so on
and how we can collect the terminology
for each dialect.

I referred to that (interpretation ends)
website, (interpretation) which is a
wonderful tool and resource, as
apparently it can assist in collecting and
disseminating information, as we heard
earlier. Perhaps we can utilize these
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different communication methods and
search for the proper terminology.
Additionally, on another matter, Jeela
spoke earlier to the posters that show
words in Inuktitut and there are more
posters being published.

With regard to the dialectal differences,
we don’t want to lose any of our dialects
and that has to be a focus for the future so
we can ensure our children retain their
Inuktut dialect. We are looking at visiting
this issue through meetings to discuss
how best to set it up without a hurried
approach. As an example, English is one
language, albeit in different dialects, but
written English is a language everyone
understands. That is not the case with the
Inuit language. We have many different
dialects and all of them are precious. We
won’t let them go, we won’t abandon
them, but we have to develop a strategy
as to where our direction is and how we
will ensure that dialects are retained. It is
pretty well a two way street, so to speak.

For students in our schools today, as an
example, my own children and
grandchildren, we will have to develop a
strategy for their future as they are
already being confused linguistically by
the technology used today, such as
computers, tablets, and iPads. They are
all in English. I appreciate the technology
and | am not criticizing the English-only
platform, but it does impact them
linguistically.

Part of the discussion around these
platforms brings up Roman orthography,
which is closest to the English writing
system and the sounds are similar in their
pronunciation, but syllabics are different.
We haven’t set it up yet, but down the
road, we will have to begin discussions
on this issue to see how we can better
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standardize the Inuit language so that
every term is recognized territorially.

To use Greenland as an example, they
have managed to retain use of their
language without losing their dialects and
I believe we can also accomplish that
here or at least that is our expectation.
Thank you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson, for the clear response.
Mr. Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak (interpretation):
Thank you, Madam Chairperson. When
we are discussing this topic, there are
new words that are coming out that you
have to work on. This morning, the
example was the English term
“airbrakes” and how you would say that
properly in Inuktut. People will need to
be informed of these new words as you
develop them. When do you think this
work will be completed? Thank you,
Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Mikkungwak. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you. This will continue pretty much like
the process laid out earlier this morning
using the example of “airbrakes.” Inuit
are already pretty mechanically inclined
or at least those of us who tend to break
down often. We have terms such as
pualunnguaq (like a mitten) and
gallinnguaq (like pants). Inuit are very
creative when it comes to naming
snowmobile parts. It becomes quite clear
to other Inuit who speak that dialect,
although it may be the case for those of
us who break down often.

There are also other technologies

AOAS DSbDP*LE IC>YUSNM Do
JPYbD>NMOoJo.

AdPCDS>C PPONNONE, NI

P>bP>bILC. ARc<DAa®oNvH. DRJCCHS®

CLo CAL®Q A% ®dSeC. CLa aPPMyocC,
Sgbeal®, Ab/RPCSb,

Ab/XPCSe: sguoq [CCPSe, [MC CLNe,
PCNGAC. TC MPeU<se,

FPeddse: [ ’a < H<4\b, Ab/PC®, Cla
D>b>Ync5NJ CAL oCabCPse DSb>Sab
NNG®<L<ALY. DPONNSL, D se
D>sbD>/D>c D>®D “airbrakes” AobDC Sbose
>bLD> . LYSL*LE CLedo™L
DPPBLLDYAHSLC. Cod<d oCC Dsb>JC
NNSbcP>G<Y. Ctac b Ld® Adoro<<?
La, AbYDCS®,

Ab/RPCSL: sdbea ™, [C MPedds, M e,

CLhe: sdbeal™® Coa ba/a<seIseC>® ><¢ b
Db/ A“C®eb>*LJ “airbrakes.” CAbd<
DeONPedeb> L. AobNJ“c
Sb>ALC<o®D<SYd PPIM® YSdrenLeINJC.
“>IO%JL” Ldd, “SbScJ<se.”
AEN®IAAGHLEC PPIC Ac Moo,

QP T NK® 5o, PPIHYLeLNONJac b

PO,

CL*dd CL", Sb“Hac AdN*M*o¢

52




designed for southern uses that we are
also expecting to surface and that will
require a common terminology
understood by all. An example is if |
went to the store and | said to the clerk
that | want to buy the gallinnguag or
pualunnguaq part, they would know what
itis.

Whenever a request is made to our office,
we will try to work with them, whether it
is regarding a new term or an ancient
Inuit term that can be used. We envision
a future where Inuktitut is spoken without
insertion of English or French words, and
in terms understood by everyone. That is
part of our future plans, especially since
we have many different dialects. We
accept them all and are happy to receive
them. However, the question is: how can
we keep Inuktitut strong and standing?
Thank you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Mr. Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak (interpretation):
Thank you very much, Madam
Chairperson. It seems obvious that the
Atausiq Inuktut Titirausiq national task
group holds meetings. Where are these
meetings held? Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Mikkungwak. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you. I’ll have our executive director,
Jeela, respond to that. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Ms. Pallug.

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Thank you. There is the Atausiq Inuktut
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Titirausiq national task group under the
Inuit Tapiriit Kanatami in Ottawa. There
will be a coordinator soon. | was the
coordinator, but I have just returned to
my position at the Taiguusiliugtiit group.
That was my position down at the
standardized Inuktitut committee
meetings. Since it was under ITK, the
majority of the meetings were held in
Ottawa. In the last three years, meetings
were held mostly down south.

We held consultations with Inuit from the
four regions in Canada: Inuvialuit,
Nunavut, Nunavik, and Labrador, or
Nunatsiavut. We also went to their
respective regions to meet with them,
although we didn’t have a chance to go to
all of their communities. Nunavut has the
highest number of communities of the
four regions. Although we weren’t able
to get to all the communities, most of the
standardized Inuktut meetings were held
mainly in Ottawa, but we held a meeting
here in August 2015. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Pallug. Mr. Mikkungwak, are you
done? Mr. Enook.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you,
Madam Chairperson. If you would allow
me, | would like to return to the Inuktitut
proficiency testing and indicators for
competency levels.

| believe, at this time, our government
has a policy related to Inuktitut called a
bilingual bonus, and if a GN employee is
considered to be fluent, a bonus is added
to their salary. That is the current policy
of this government. Some of the people,
me included, have a problem with this
policy because in some ways, it is
belittling the requirements for speaking
Inuktitut. If someone can demonstrate
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that they can say “hello” or “goodbye” in
Inuktitut, they are deemed to be bilingual
and they just wait for their bilingual
bonus since they have qualified for
conversational Inuktitut. The way it is set
up currently is just belittling the Inuktitut
language, at least in my opinion. | have
no faith in the current set-up. This is
solely my thinking and isn’t anybody
else’s opinion.

However, | believe this is talking about
you working on things like this. | hope
that it’s better than the system that is set
up right now. The question that | have
and what | am trying to get clarified is:
will there be different levels of
competency? The way | understand it, if |
take a one-hour workshop in Inuktitut,
then they will say that I’m really good in
Inuktitut, so my bonus will be coming
because I’m really good in Inuktitut now.
Thinking about that, can we expect
standards to be put in place stating, “You
have achieved this level and you can
progress to the next level” and so on?
Can something be set up like that? Thank
you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Enook. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you. As the Inuit Ugausinginnik
Taiguusiliugtiit, we are very serious
about this and we are working on it to the
best of our ability. That is what we want
to expect. As far as recognizing an
employee who is bilingual, we have to
work with them. Everyone needs to work
together, not just our office, in order to
deal with this. Since this is a daily
operational issue, I’ll have Ms. Pallug
respond to the question. Thank you,
Madam Chairperson.
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Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Ms. Pallug, can you
supplement the response?

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Absolutely. Thank you. To date, many
concerns have been raised about the
government’s bilingual bonus. That’s
why we’re working on the competency
levels so we can identify where an
employee is at. Although some of us can
speak Inuktitut very well, some of us
don’t have the writing skills and there are
different levels of proficiency.

When we know what an employee’s level
of Inuktitut proficiency is, once they have
taken further language instruction and
they have achieved the required level of
Inuktitut fluency, a bonus can given.
Their training could take place over the
course of a year or more. There are
incentives we are trying to provide to
government employees so that people
will take Inuktitut language training that
can be reflected in their pay. Their level
of proficiency will determine which pay
scale they would be at. That is how we
would like to set it up.

As | mentioned, there are three steps, and
if your competency level only allows you
to be able to say “goodbye,” then you
wouldn’t receive a bonus.

An Hon. Member: Thank you!

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation): To
explain, if you are bilingual, then you
would receive a bonus and as your
abilities increase, so would your pay.
That’s how we want to set it up.

We will work with the Department of
Finance to determine how many staff
work within the government that are
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eligible for the bilingual bonus. Once all
of this work is complete, our goal is to
make sure we provide incentives for
employees to take more training.
Sometimes we get stuck at one level.
This work is being done so we can
provide incentives to employees. Even
with staff who are able to speak Inuktitut,
we would like to provide what they call
“incentives” in English so that they will
want to take more training. With a
specific goal, we will have a given
incentive. That is why the money is also
there.

Hopefully I was understood. Thank you,
Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Pallug. That was very clear. Mr.
Enook.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you,
Madam Chairperson. The reason | asked
that question is because | agreed with Ms.
Thompson’s comments earlier. Our
language is a very serious matter and it’s
very important. | am anxious to get the
results of your work because your work
is very important. | wanted to ask that
question again because you stated that
you have started work in this area and
that you have to work with other entities
and departments.

I can hardly wait to see the results, so |
ask: when do you expect this work to be
done? What is your target date for
completing the proficiency tests and the
competency levels so employees won’t
be paid a bilingual bonus for only being
able to say “good morning” or “goodbye”
in Inuktitut? Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
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Mr. Enook. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you. | very much understand where
you’re coming from. We’re working on
these issues and although we expect to
see the results as soon as possible, we
know that it is a slow process. As | stated
before, sometimes due to lack of staff or
a high staff turnover, things take longer.

We want to hire staff who are
responsible, who want to work, and who
are very serious with their work no
matter who it is, from the lowest of
levels, such as 1 to 3, to higher levels
where they are more competent. We will
provide assistance and incentives for
learning and we would like to see the
results right away. It’s unfortunate, but
this is a slow process, although | would
very much like to see it completed right
away.

Perhaps Ms. Pallug can add to that.
Thank you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Ms. Pallug.

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Thank you. Although I mentioned it
earlier with the competency testing, we
have completed the first set of testing for
the (interpretation ends) North Baffin
dialect. (interpretation) It is complete. In
time, we hope to complete the other
dialects, (interpretation ends) South
Baffin (interpretation) and Inuinnaqtun
assessments with results before March
3L

Regarding the bilingual bonus and the
competency levels for employees, the
Department of Finance have will have to
review this once they complete the
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research and set up their pay grid
pertaining to the bilingual bonus. They
can then start implementing this
according to the competency of the staff.
We would like to set this up as soon as
possible.

We have completed the (interpretation
ends) North Baffin (interpretation)
language assessment tool and perhaps
next year, we will be able to implement
this. Thank you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Pallug. Mr. Joanasie.

Mr. Joanasie (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. | have a
question in regard to the employees who
have been working with the government
on Inuktitut language proficiency testing.
Right now, the Department of Executive
and Intergovernmental Affairs is
responsible for the bilingual pay
designation for employees who speak
Inuktitut. Did you consult with EIA first
prior to implementing it? Thank you,
Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Joanasie. Ms. Pallug. I’m sorry. Ms.
Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you. It’s already being implemented
within the government. In the
government, | saw it as (interpretation
ends) phase 1, phase 2, (interpretation)
Inuktitut 1, Inuktitut 2. That’s the way |
saw it being implemented on the
computer. That program is being made
available to staff who would like to take
Inuktut language training courses. The
government is quite open and | see that in
those levels. Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.
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Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Mr. Joanasie.

Mr. Joanasie (interpretation): Thank
you. | suppose there are many
government employees whose Inuktitut
proficiency levels will be assessed. The
executive director said that they wanted
to complete prior to March 31 the
assessment for North Baffin as well as
the other dialects. You will be able to
implement those with the staff of
government. Will all of this work be
completed prior to March 31? Thank you,
Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Joanasie. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Yes, she
spoke about (interpretation ends) North
Baffin, (interpretation) which has already
been completed, and it will be worked on
by the end of March. We will continue to
work on this and to complete it as soon as
possible. Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Mr. Joanasie.

Mr. Joanasie (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. | will also
expect to see this go forward.

Moving on, my colleague for Baker Lake
asked a question about Inuit Tapiriit
Kanatami and the work they’re doing to
create one Inuktut standardized writing
system for the whole of Canada. | would
like to know how involved Inuit
Uqausinginnik Taiguusiliugtiit is with
them. Looking at Canada as a whole,
Nunavut is the largest territory and it has
the highest population of Inuit. How
involved are you with the work being
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done on standardizing the writing
system? | know that there are Inuit living
in other regions outside of Nunavut such
as Nunavik, Inuvialuit, and Nunatsiavut.
Nunavut is the largest territory out of all
those. What do you envision with the
ITK committee? Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Joanasie. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you. Ms. Palluqg is working on that.
Although she works with the Inuit
Ugausinginnik Taiguusiliugtiit, she is
now our executive director and | know
that the work on this issue will go
forward. I’ll have Ms. Pallug answer the
question because it’s part of her duties.
Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Ms.
Pallug, would you like to add to that?

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Thank you. At the time when Inuit
Tapiriit Kanatami was coming up with
the Atausiq Inuktut Titirausiq task group,
they wanted two members from each of
the regions. We asked for two
participants from Nunavut and the
director of Taiguusiliugtiit became a
member of that committee. After she
resigned, she was replaced by Jeannie
Arreak-Kullualik from Nunavut
Tunngavik, who is also a member of the
Atausiq Inuktut Titirausiq task group.
The executive director of Taiguusiliugtiit
also took part in the committee when
they were identifying the writing systems
that are used by Nunavummiut.

In Ottawa, when they were looking at the
status of Inuktut and language
standardization in each region in Canada,

ACDYSTe NNGPPPCLE<IN DN QPN 5?
SHD>ALLOC®DY, IP*C 0. D¢ Y CoCIC
A0SINSBLLCECD®, A5 BONNLHI oa b,
AOALDOAS, 00 YLDC 0 D¢

P Te<YHCPNE . Sbose CHIAY CRa
bNLA>SbC>N5P? Sdyeal™®, Ab/DCSe,

A/ RQU>CS®: sdheq [CCD%, C <<ar. M CHhe,

CLhe: sgheqleCp, Coa M <&5<
Acndn*Ld. CLOIM™L

A nbNAGHC®PN“Od ADAC DSbDY o
CAJ/cD>PNNJC Gt PGENJE, C3R
AbI®NNGENJC DPIKPNCNA PP oNJ D
b¥d/*aSod® oo 5 CL*a Acndnb2c I
<51 PPN*odGbd Acnd“cn*LC AcM™Ld.
sdyeal™®.

APYRDPCSe: [ <% Ac P> °PD?

<e5%-d 5CNA: dval™® A, CAJ/cDeNede
CAS Lo AoAS CAAC baCl
KPCNE g <IN HNC Coda™L bNLA>o<®Da®
ACDPYSe AoPNDE NNGD>HST®
SPrsPa o <INHNC DYSnLShe DSe/ L LC
LSPAJCCS5Ne bNLNbSo<SLC

CLA®0® ADAS oa* o <4\PD%/LYo.
CLe*LE oa 2t L®dvo? LPva® Db/GsbsLC
C*a CAJ/cD®Ned® 0 DP_IPNCNA>I
bNLM U DSe/Le 5o CAL* Lo
O%bGHLE PJA®N*LC <L
bNLAD>BC> N Do, JAKSb® o5Ne

002 Dot po dn<b-5d O™, 0a. 2¢
DesLabde gL bNLA>SHCD o Cbdo™L
ACDPY®e AoPNDE NNSPBYSIC bNLN o, Ced<
CAJ/cDeNed g% 5o Ca
DP_IENENAD>L® bNLL®DHCPSheC e/ L >t
002D ALALLC AL*a. NNSPPSbSLC

Q. OaA®YR“HNE,

Cbao o <I<Qr Ca Acn<dnbba D5
CLA® 0 Ao*0C baCl>CSof NN/
ACD>YST IDGYSLALC SPIsPRec<dN©oNC

61




the chair of Taiguusiliugtiit participated
in that discussion and explained the
situation in Nunavut. This was still the
case prior to my assuming the role of the
executive director of IUT when | left my
previous position in Ottawa with ITK,
but I am still on the committee as the
work hasn’t been completed yet. After
their meetings and once decisions have
been made with resolutions, including
choosing the language of instruction,
using the syllabics or Roman orthography
writing system, we will see which can be
used in education and research and which
would be easiest to implement. It has
only reached that far.

In my new role as the executive director
for the Inuit Ugausinginnik
Taiguusiliugtiit, I will continue to attend
meetings with the Inuit Tapiriit Kanatami
regarding the writing system. Thank you,
Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Pallug. Mr. Joanasie.

Mr. Joanasie (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. Thank you for
the response. | will now move to
Taiguusiliugtiit’s 2014-15 annual report.
On page 10, it indicates that one of the
priorities for 2015-16 is to “Support
government departments, public
agencies, municipalities and businesses
in the development of specialized Inuit
language terminology.” As of April 1,
2015, what specific departments, public
agencies, municipalities, and businesses
have approached your agency for
assistance in the development of
specialized Inuit language terminology?
Thank you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Joanasie. Ms. Thompson.
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Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you. This work is ongoing. Every time
we receive any request for assistance, for
example, with signage outside of
buildings, we can provide assistance and
if we can continue with that, it would be
very good. We expect to continue work
in this area. If there’s a request for
support on language terminology, then
we make a decision on that and that’s
what we expect.

Since she does all the daily operational
work, Ms. Pallug can supplement my
response. Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Ms. Pallug, would you
like to add to that?

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Yes, absolutely. We have had various
requests for support. We have indicated
that the Departments of Health, Family
Services, Culture and Heritage,
Economic Development and
Transportation, and Executive and
Intergovernmental Affairs have requested
support from our agency. There have also
been other requests from non-government
organizations. The Qullig Energy
Corporation wanted our help to put
together energy terminology. The Inuit
Broadcasting Corporation has also
requested our assistance. There have been
other requests from the Department of
Education.

We will have an ongoing working
relationship with them and continue
providing them with assistance. As |
stated, we have provided support to
Qullig, IBC, the departments of Health,
Culture and Heritage, Transportation,
Education, and Executive and
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Intergovernmental Affairs. We have
assisted those entities to date. Thank you,
Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Pallug. Mr. Joanasie.

Mr. Joanasie (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. Can you
indicate if Taiguusiliugtiit has offered its
services to any municipality or business
in Nunavut without having received a
request for assistance? Thank you,
Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Joanasie. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you. We can do that, but we also do not
want to approach any organization
without first having a discussion. We
have seen signage that isn’t written the
way it should be, but we do need to have
a working relationship and an agreement
prior to providing assistance for those
private agencies. It’s preferable that we
coordinate with the agency. We all want
to see properly written Inuktitut signage
out there, for example, road signs.

We look forward to having a close
working relationship with the
organizations. We don’t want to just
approach an organization and impose our
services. We would rather have a
discussion first and come to an agreement
prior to working together. Thank you,
Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Mr. Joanasie.

Mr. Joanasie (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. On page 11 of
your 2014-15 annual report, you indicate
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that Taiguusiliugtiit consists of a board
with at least five members and is
supported by a staff of seven employees.
On average, how many times per year do
the board members meet? Is it something
like three or four times a year? How
many times does the board meet per
year? Thank you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Joanasie. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you. When possible, we meet at least
three times a year, but if there’s an
immediate requirement for us to meet, we
meet four times. We have to watch our
budget. In the past, our committee
members used to have meetings in
between board meetings. We meet at
least three times a year and possibly four
times. We try to make sure we rotate our
meetings between the Kivalliq,
Qikigtaaluk, and Kitikmeot regions.
Thank you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Mr. Joanasie.

Mr. Joanasie (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. How many
meetings have the Taiguusiliugtiit board
members held to date in the current 2015-
16 fiscal year? Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Joanasie. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you. | think we have met three times this
fiscal year, but we are going to be starting
a meeting tomorrow and that will be our
fourth one. Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.
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Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Mr. Joanasie.

Mr. Joanasie (interpretation): Thank
you. | think this question was asked
earlier, but | would like further
clarification. As Taiguusiliugtiit, do you
make resolutions during your meetings
on the terminology that you gather? For
example, after a board meeting, do you
compile a list of terminology that was
produced during a given meeting? Thank
you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Joanasie. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation):
Regarding resolutions, I will have Ms.
Pallug respond as this is a part of her
duties. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Ms. Pallug.

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Thank you. We haven’t always made
resolutions at every board meeting, but in
the past, with terminology that was
compiled, for example, as Mary
mentioned, the members discussed
whether “ikpinnaittuliniq” would now be
the term to use for cancer.

In 2014, there were different translations
that were done and there is a very big
difference even just in the Baffin region
and we have a lot of
interpreter/translators. For example, there
are some words that are written with no
finals and then there are some words like
“Nunavut.” There are different ways of
saying the word “Nunavut” as in from
Nunavut, in Nunavut, and in Inuinnaqtun,
there are four ways of saying “Nunavut”
depending on the ending. I believe it was
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in 2014 that the language authority
compiled some terminology and made it
public stating that it would be written this
way from now on. The terminology was
agreed to by a resolution and then the
terminology was given to the translators
and the departments, and then the Inuit
Language Authority made it official.

As Mary indicated earlier, there has been
some turnover among our staff for some
time now and we usually don’t do this
often enough. We are going to make sure
that once a term is approved by the board,
we will make it available to the people of
Nunavut, the government departments,
and then say that that is the Inuktitut term
that we are going to be using from now
on. We have made very few decisions
like that.

Again, as an example, the word
“devolution” in Inuktitut was finalized.
Once those words are agreed upon, they
are approved by resolution. Devolution
will be nangminigsurniq in Inuktitut. We
will make sure that we make all of these
approved terms known to the general
public. Thank you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Pallug. Mr. Joanasie.

Mr. Joanasie (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. Even as
Members of the Legislative Assembly,
we don’t know what words to use in
Inuktitut like “Chairperson.” For
example, we might say, “Iksivautaaq,”
“Ugagtittijiralaaqg,” “lksivautaliik,” or
“Iksivautagaqtug.”

>>[ aughter

We do want to use standardized words as
Members of this House, and I do fully
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support you in your work. | just wanted
to make you smile with that comment.

On page 11 of your annual report, it
indicates that you are supported by a staff
of seven employees. Can you indicate if
those positions are all filled and, if not,
which ones are currently vacant? Thank
you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Joanasie. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): | think
all of the positions are filled now. Jeela
just said no. Since I’m not in the office
every day, | do apologize if | do make
mistakes. | will refer this question to Ms.
Pallug.

Chairperson: Ms. Pallug.

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Thank you. To date, there are six
employees. One position for the
terminology was available that was filled
by Jaypeetee Arnakak. There’s usually a
term set for positions. Some are
indeterminate and some are term
positions. The financial officer’s term
will end in December and the language
position will end in January and they will
have to be replaced. We will have to fill
those positions as well as two
terminologist positions. One of them has
to be filled. To date, we have six
employees, but there are eight positions
at Taiguusiliugtiit. Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you.
Mr. Joanasie.

Mr. Joanasie (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. It’s almost
lunchtime. If everyone agrees, would you
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like to take a break?
>>| aughter

Can I just go ahead? Maybe I’ll try one
more.

In Taiguusiliugtiit’s 2015-19 business
plan, it indicates that one of the priorities
for the 2014-15 fiscal year was to
approve a number of policies, including
the Awards Policy, Terminology
Approval Policy, and Board Roles and
Responsibilities Policy, and that these
policies have been approved by the
board. When will these policies be
presented to be tabled in the Legislative
Assembly? Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Joanasie. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): This is
more directed towards the office
administration, so I’ll have Ms. Pallug
respond to that. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you.
Ms. Pallug, can you respond to that?

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Yes, absolutely. They are different
policies applicable to each area. We have
a complete policy on terminology. When
the board is going to deliberate on
particular terminology options, it is also
covered by a terminology policy. With
respect to awards given to individuals or
organizations, that too is covered by

policy.

These various policies we are talking
about all have a beginning and an end, as
with most policies, and the current ones
have expired. Whether we will continue
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with them as they are written or if we
redraft them, they would have to be
approved by the Legislative Assembly or
by the Premier’s Office with a signed
document. The policies are currently
expired, but we will be reviewing them
for applicability and if we are required to
submit new policies, then that will be the
case. Thank you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you.
Mr. Joanasie.

Mr. Joanasie (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. We will be
expecting those policies when they’re
ready to be tabled.

Moving on, in your 2015-19 business
plan, you indicate that one of the
priorities of Taiguusiliugtiit for the 2014-
15 fiscal year was to “establish a
technical working group and develop a
terms of reference to engage and consult
with applicable Inuit language
stakeholders, located within and outside
of Nunavut,” but that “the technical
working group has not been established
to date due to staff vacancies.” Can you
indicate what staff vacancies prevented
Taiguusiliugtiit from establishing this
working group? Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Joanasie. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Yes, that
is the case. We try to keep up to date on
this issue. This started with computers
and technology. We wanted to have a
more robust working relationship. This
will be ongoing. We’re expecting to put
together a database of terminology and
they will be documented.
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As | mentioned earlier this morning, we
will be putting more information on the
(interpretation ends) website
(interpretation) regarding the computer
database and this is part of that. The
consulting will also be part of that. “This
IS what we wish to establish. Does that
meet your approval?” | know that this is a
bit urgent and we would like to move fast
on it, but we would like to set it up
properly, so we get a little bit behind
sometimes.

I hope | responded to the question. Thank
you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you.
Mr. Joanasie.

Mr. Joanasie (interpretation): Thank
you. Can you indicate when you expect
the technical working group to be
established and its terms of reference
developed and tabled in the Legislative
Assembly? Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Joanasie. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): This is
an administrative matter, so Ms. Pallug
will respond to it. Thank you.

Chairperson: Ms. Pallug.

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Thank you. Maybe this wasn’t described
properly. What it means is that when our
staff is directed, we try to fulfill this role.
If we don’t agree with each other on a
term or if something is not clear to us, we
ask for assistance from the
Taiguusiliugtiit board if we require their
approval.
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However, with respect to our work, we
invite key people who can help us
understand certain terminology. That’s
how the (interpretation ends) technical
working group (interpretation) is defined.
It’s not a set group. For example, if
someone is working on (interpretation
ends) airbrakes, (interpretation) we put
the mechanics or people who are
knowledgeable together and tell them,
“These are the English terms without
Inuktut terms. As you understand it, how
would you say it in Inuktut?” That’s how
the (interpretation ends) technical
working group (interpretation) functions.

When we’re going to put together a
group of people to collect information,
then we have a policy covering the whole
area. The (interpretation ends) technical
working group (interpretation) really
means that if we cannot deal with
something within our office or if we need
more information, we try to get different
ideas from knowledgeable people. It is
not a set committee or group, and there
are times it isn’t set up. It’s more geared
towards mechanical, health, or education
terminology.

There are people with knowledge in
different areas. Sometimes we consult
with elders when we’re dealing with old
terms. If a new term is created, we have
the ability to consult with the elders. That
is how we operate and what the meaning
is when we refer to the (interpretation
ends) technical working group.
(interpretation) Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Pallug. (interpretation ends) Your
last question, Mr. Joanasie.

Mr. Joanasie (interpretation): Thank
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you, Madam Chairperson. This will be
my last question. Can you list what Inuit
language stakeholders that
Taiguusiliugtiit is currently consulting
with or plans to consult with in the
future? Can you indicate who the
language stakeholders are? Thank you,
Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Joanasie. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): This
hasn’t been completely defined, but the
elders, who are experts in our Inuktitut
language, are completely fluent and
knowledgeable and won’t be forgotten in
this process, so let us keep that valuable
resource in mind.

Also, we want to continue to work with
our stakeholders. Whenever terminology
is created, it will be compiled and we will
continue to publicize each new term. We
want to work closely with others on
behalf of Nunavut and the Inuit. Thank
you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you.
As it is now past lunchtime, we will take
a break and return at 1:30. Thank you.

>>Committee recessed at 12:03 and
resumed at 13:28

Chairperson: Good afternoon,
everybody. Welcome back. We will get
right into business. The next name on my
list is Mr. Akoak.

Mr. Akoak: Thank you, Madam
Chairperson. Good afternoon, Mary
Thompson and staff. (interpretation) Just
so you are aware, | will be asking my
questions in English. | have a hard time
understanding Inuktut and I want to make
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sure you understand what 1’m saying.

(interpretation ends) Thank you, Madam
Chairperson. In your 2015-19 business
plan, you indicate that a memorandum of
understanding between Taiguusiliugtiit
and Department of Culture and
Heritage’s Official Languages Division
was in development and that you
anticipated a final version of this
memorandum would be completed prior
to the end of the 2014-15 fiscal year. Can
you indicate if this memorandum of
understanding has been finalized and can
you describe what this memorandum
entails? Thank you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson: Thank you, Mr. Akoak.
(interpretation) Ms. Thompson, would
you like to respond?

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you. Let me look at my notes here. | will
have Ms. Pallug respond to that. Thank
you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Ms. Pallug.

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Yes, the memorandum of understanding
was between the Department of Culture
and Heritage and Taiguusiliugtiit.
Taiguusiliugtiit became a standalone
entity separate from the Department of
Culture and Heritage. They provide a
contribution of $2.76 million annually
from the Department of Culture and
Heritage. The memorandum of
understanding outlines that we need to do
planning for the work of Taiguusiliugtiit.
It is explained here in the business plan.
We had to do the business plan under the
memorandum of understanding with the
Department of Culture and Heritage for
the contributions.
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As to how that money will be used
annually, we have to set our budget and
produce a business plan detailing what
Taiguusiliugtiit will be doing in the
coming year. That is outlined in the
memorandum of understanding and the
contribution agreement in terms of the
obligations of Taiguusiliugtiit. Thank
you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Pallug. Mr. Akoak.

Mr. Akoak: Thank you, Madam
Chairperson. In the same business plan,
you indicate that two Inuit language
glossaries were developed on traditional
Inuit subjects during the 2014-15 fiscal
year. Can you indicate if Taiguusiliugtiit
is currently working on any new Inuit
language glossaries and, if so, what are
the subject areas of these new glossaries?
Thank you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson: Thank you, Mr. Akoak.
Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. Although we
don’t have a complete database, the
glossaries are basically like an Inuktitut
to English dictionary and we continue to
add more terminology. To use an
example, we have done glossaries for the
gamutik, iglu, and qullig series and that
work has been completed.

Our employees have worked on different
things. Some of their work is yet to be
completed while others are at the
approval phase. We will be reviewing
that tomorrow when the board holds its
meetings. Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Mr. Akoak.
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Mr. Akoak: Thank you, Madam
Chairperson. In the same business plan,
you indicate that Taiguusiliugtiit
developed guidelines for using the Inuit
Cultural Institute Standard Writing
System but that these guidelines were not
published due to staff vacancies. Can you
indicate when these guidelines will be
published and how Taiguusiliuqtiit plans
to distribute them throughout Nunavut?
Thank you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Akoak. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. The Inuit
Cultural Institute put this together. It’s set
up very nicely. For example, in the
Kitikmeot and parts of the Kivalliq area,
they use the “h” in place of the “s” in
some instances. We have tried to
accommodate that and to follow the
actual way to write that word. We have
put a tag on each word like an indicator
on the meaning of the word. Ms. Palluq
can explain that further. Thank you,
Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Ms. Pallug, can you
respond to that?

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Thank you. This question is probably
specific to me as | started that work
compiling written examples of ICI
standards because our written language
has its own rules. Unfortunately, not
every translator follows the ICI rules and
many rely on what they learned first. For
these new guidelines, we have created
several sets like a spellchecker, for
example, for syllabics or Inuktitut words,
especially terminology that can be
available on our computer desktops as a
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folder with the rules laid out for things
such as the placement of finals. We have
started to lay out the rules within this
folder. It is available now and has been
distributed to all schools and
interpreter/translator divisions.

With respect to your question about the
policy and having it as resource material,
when | left the position, the report stated
that (interpretation ends) they were not
published due to staff vacancies.
(interpretation) This occurred when | left
my position to take on the ITK position
in Ottawa. Apparently due to my
extended leave, the work wasn’t
completed and published. Now that I am
back and | am aware of the work that
stopped, I can easily get it started again.
If not soon, we will be preparing them for
publication and, indeed, we hope to
publish them before the end of this fiscal
year. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you.
Mr. Akoak.

Mr. Akoak: Thank you, Madam
Chairperson. In the same business plan,
you indicate that “a final report of the
Inuit Language Standardization
Symposium held in lgaluit during
February 2011 was produced and
published” during the 2014-15 fiscal
year. Is this report currently available to
the public and when will it be tabled in
the House? Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.

Chairperson: Thank you, Mr. Akoak.
Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you. That’s part of the last topic, so I’ll
have my executive director continue with
the response. Thank you.
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Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you.
Ms. Pallug.

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Thank you. | apologize that I cannot
answer that right now. We held that
meeting in Rankin Inlet in September
2011, but the full report hasn’t been
completed. Once the final report is done,
we will make it available and distribute it
to the people who took part in the
meetings. We plan to publish a report in
February about the meetings in Igaluit. |
haven’t seen the actual report, so | can’t
respond to that. | apologize. Thank you,
Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Pallug. Mr. Akoak has no more
questions. Mr. Joanasie.

Mr. Joanasie (interpretation): |1 would
like to ask questions about your budget.
The statement of expenditures included
in your 2014-15 annual report includes
three columns titled “Budget 2015,”
“Actual 2015,” and “Actual 2014.” Can
you clarify if these columns reflect your
office’s budget and actual expenditures
for the 2014-15 fiscal year and actual
expenditures for the 2013-14 fiscal year,
respectively? Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Joanasie. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you. This was before the Inuit
Uqausinginnik Taiguusiliugtiit was
properly set up. We believe that we will
be able to follow the budget closely this
time around. We know that we want to
meet with translators before the end of
this fiscal year. | believe that we will be
able to follow this budget a lot better. We
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might not be able to spend 100 percent of
it, but it will be a lot closer than what we
have done in the past. Thank you,
Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Mr. Joanasie.

Mr. Joanasie (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. | would like to
get clarification. During a fiscal year, you
break down your budget. We’re now in
the 2015-16 fiscal year. If we look at the
past two years in your annual reports
with the actual expenditures from 2015
and 2014, we can see the breakdowns.
Would the actual from 2015 have been
spent in 2014-15 and the actual for 2014
was spent for the year 2013-14? Is that
the way it works? Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Joanasie. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you. Yes, that’s the way it is. We make
decisions with our finance person to see
if we have enough money in each budget
column and to see if we need to use more
money in other budget areas. This budget
2015 is for the year 2015-16. Thank you,
Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Mr. Joanasie.

Mr. Joanasie (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. According to
your statement of expenditures, your
office lapsed over 27 percent of its
budget for the 2014-15 fiscal year. Can
you specify what factors caused this?
Thank you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
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Mr. Joanasie. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you. As | stated this morning, we are
quite new to this, my executive director
and I, so | really don’t understand the
reasoning, but I believe it was partly
because we had to get a committee to
compile the terminology for health. We
stopped meeting with other entities
because we didn’t know how much
funding we had left. We could have just
looked at our financial statement. Ms.
Pallug will respond to what expenditures
they used it for. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Ms. Pallug.

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Thank you. As per the financial
statements on the expenditures of
Taiguusiliugtiit, over 27 percent of their
budget lapsed for 2013-14. Yes, it’s true,
sometimes we lapse our funding and
sometimes we go over our budget. In the
budget in the past, they have overspent
on travel and everything is detailed.
There is a budget for compensation and
salaries, office supplies, and everything
has been budgeted for.

There have been times when we did not
expend our entire budget. For example,
under office supplies such as paper and
computers, there was a line item of
$150,000. In 2014, we only spent
$55,202. There are different reasons why
we lapse funding. Some of it is due to a
lack of positions being filled or staff
changeovers or in English, (interpretation
ends) a lack of capacity. (interpretation)
Those are the reasons that some of the
funding has lapsed in the office of
Taiguusiliugtiit.
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To elaborate on what Mary said earlier,
during the 2014-15 fiscal year, | believe
that we will spend according to each of
our budget line items. My response to
you is that we have different reasons for
why funding lapses at times and why we
overspend other times. There have been
different reasons why funding has lapsed,
such as a lack of capacity or incomplete
projects. Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Pallug. Mr. Joanasie.

Mr. Joanasie (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. According to
your statement of expenditures, your
office spent $158,241 on casual wages
during the 2014-15 fiscal year, over 40
percent more than you had budgeted. |
believe Ms. Pallug-Cloutier briefly
explained that some positions are only
budgeted for a few years based on
projects or if they are filled with casual
positions. Can you indicate how many
positions in your office are currently
filled by indeterminate, term, and casual
employees? Thank you, Madam
Chairperson. That’s it for me.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Joanasie. Ms. Pallug.

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Yes, | alluded to it this morning. There
are two casual employees whose terms
will end on December 4. We will have to
hire a new finance officer and also the
language specialist will end at the end of
January and we will have to find another
employee.

The budget was used for casual
employees and our finance officer needed
an assistant. When a staff member leaves
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their position temporarily, they can’t be
replaced by a permanent employee, so
they have to be replaced by a casual.
That’s one of the reasons for the over-
expenditures. Using myself as an
example, I had left my office for a term
with the intention of returning to my
position. | could use the assistant for the
finance officer as one of the examples of
going over the budget.

For indeterminate positions, there are
currently four positions. According to the
agreement, my term is three years as the
executive director. The terminology
specialist is an indeterminate position.
The researcher and communication
officers are indeterminate terms. There
are two positions with terms and their
terms are ending in December and
January. Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Pallug. Mr. Keyootak. Mr. Enook. |
apologize.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you,
Madam Chairperson. Good afternoon.
While we’re on the topic of budgets and
expenditures, | would like to get further
clarification.

If we look at the 2013-14 expenditures,
there’s a line item of $150,000 and you
used $55,000 under materials and
supplies. You requested a budget of
$200,000 for purchased services and your
actual was $76,000. Under fees and
payments, it was set at $50,000 and the
actual was $2,000. Likewise in 2014-15,
for materials and supplies, you budgeted
$150,000 and the actual was $73,000. For
contract services, you budgeted $310,000
and the actual was $63,000. For fees and
payments, you budgeted $50,000 and the

SPLAPLC_P>bPNE5NC BNP QeI >N<HNC Coa
PJR\C > >+ LLC

ASba AYP N D>o eI, Pl<o

ASba AL N>bA%Q So-<eD™®
PJ®CDIL Ha DY Sb A% LC
DNSAPNSb®eN 5. Coa CR
DALCDNRCDILH®>%®, PRYGE BEINP 5
>/l DGL CR2%L ASba AYSANL* of
>NPLSo < 5 L. Ca

ASba AL NP>bA%Q So<ses

DS DPCE 0¢ AlcA\SbSa<st 5o, <L
QPMPe PEONNMYQTY2C CA%a Pabbcnosdc
ABI®NPCPCDC, Codd CR ANCDHN®
DUDAILD,

L*a A%ba AbnbNeo® APLA®Q D¢
NSLD>YUC, ACe APCRASHGOLSTRIC, <*PPNL
C*a DPP>oC A*LA0C 4 PNNc>Sed

ASPba Abno<Sod. DPIBNCNND> S <L
CAJ/P>PNNLSC Aba ALdCeD®
CR>*M @ So < oo Nedc N+ Mg g
Aba ALTo® <L NNPANLAL <L
INDLa AL NENos IS DSb>ICC v of
AcndnycC Mhof Cta DNPLNNNySC,
Cedd C3R AAch\Sbcn >N v oNe

b/ r*a oSNt A%ba ALSNNL,SC, LSpb
AFCSH®IP, L*albde Alcc o oNe NZANT
L odnl . sdy®al®, AbYRPCse

AP/ RDCS®: SdhalCCP®, [ < %, ™D
SPLeC. D AoP. LIM<a®.

Aob: sdbeal®,
AP RPCSe, P phedC, CRg Pa bl
JPYN<PbeoSa<ISL JANbA*a c >Sc *L.

D>d< C>DPdNJC 2013-14 Pa DLeDINAGT,
A5 ASdNotdse PaPLedNbPLIAT D> 5
$150,000-c®. <ID%Dda>5¢ $55,000-.

AL oPAdNRLY Y of $200,000-0°
ASLIOTD> ¢, $76,000-DA%a Sab D50 oF.
AL AP An<eC $50,000-0°

Pa DL IATD> 5. $2,000-0°
ADIATP>< 5. 2014-15 CAL*@ cCH® ASdNoC
$150,000-0° PaP>YsbPLYAc D> 5. $73,000-0°
DS of. ANNG>N o bDGo51c $310,000-
ot PalbYbPLYAc D> 5. $63,000-DA%aSo
dDsg® of. AL APt An e $50,000-0
PaDLbPLYAT D> o7,

82




actual was $5,000.

They’re not for employees; they’re for
expenditures on line items. Why are the
actuals significantly lower than the
budgeted amounts? | believe you stated
earlier that you work with your finance
officer, but the budget is not expended at
the end. Are you not concerned about
that? Thank you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Enook. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Yes, this
is always a concern to us, but as we
reported to you, we experienced a high
turnover in staff and sometimes it takes a
long time to complete reports. Members
were not really aware of what was
happening. We were supposed to get
supplies and new computers, but due to a
lack of employees, we did not expend the
entire budget for materials and supplies
until the positions were filled. It was
unintentional. It was partly because we
were not set up properly as a board.
Starting from now, we expect our
budgeting to be done properly and that it
will improve. | am not a finance person,
but I believe that this has been
improving. Ms. Pallug will elaborate
further on that. Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Ms. Pallug.

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Thank you. The budget was drafted
according to our mandate. The Inuit
Language Protection Act clearly states
the mandate of Taiguusiliugtiit. We have
to consult with Inuit and we also have to
make decisions to be used by Inuit, the
public, and government.
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Our budget was drafted based on our
mandate for $2,176,000. That is how we
came to that figure. We have not
expended the full budget line items under
contract services or fees and payments
because, under our mandate, if we want
to conduct a study, we can hire a
consultant to do the work. We haven’t
been using that. That is just an example.
That is one of the reasons why we have
spent less than what was in our budget.
We haven’t really hired any consultants
to do research or casuals to assist us in
our work and that is the main reason why
we have not expended our entire budget.

Looking at the actuals for 2014, under
service contracts, we budgeted $310,000
and used almost the whole amount. At
Taiguusiliugtiit, we are starting to fully
understand what our roles and
responsibilities are and who should be
providing support to us. Once that is all
set up, I’m sure we will be able to expend
most of our budget. | stated earlier that
the reason why we did not expend our
entire budget is because of the high
turnover rate and the lack of capacity, as
well as other reasons. Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Pallug. Mr. Enook.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you,
Madam Chairperson. When you’re
drafting your budget, I’m sure you have a
financial officer in your office. Do you
hire someone from outside of your
office? You have an agreement with the
Nunavut government and they are
represented by the Minister of Culture
and Heritage. Do you get help when
you’re putting your estimates together
and does it have to be approved by
Culture and Heritage? | do know that at
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the end of the day, we have to approve
the overall budget of the government in
this House. Is that the case? Hopefully
my question is understandable. Thank
you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Enook. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you. In the past, it hasn’t been the case.
That was why we decided to hire Pirurvik
to work with us in producing the budget
and to help us improve it. We’re just
starting to get all the information together
through the help of Pirurvik. We have
drafted the estimates and we’re expecting
to have improved budgets. It was
unintentional, but one of the reasons is
that we have had a high staff turnover in
the past few years and that was a
contributing factor for the significant
differences between the actuals and the
budget. We are expecting it to improve.
Thank you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Mr. Enook, are you
done? Mr. Enook.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you,
Madam Chairperson. Maybe I’ll rephrase
my question. | believe you have a
financial officer in your office. When the
financial officer is putting the budget and
estimates together for the year, and |
believe your executive director would be
involved in that process as well, do you
get help from your funders when you’re
developing the budget? I hope | was
clear. Thank you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you.
Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Yes, we
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do get help. We work together with the
department when we’re drafting our
budget. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Mr. Enook.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you,
Madam Chairperson. This may be my
last question. Who approves your final
budget? Is it the board of directors or the
Minister on behalf of the Nunavut
government? Who approves your final
budget? Thank you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Enook. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you. Since this is an administrative
matter, | will refer this question to Ms.
Pallug. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Ms. Pallug.

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Thank you. As | indicated this morning,
we were moved under the Department of
Culture and Heritage before we became a
separate entity from the government. At
that time, our budget had to be approved
by the Minister. When we were first
becoming independent from the
government, the Department of Culture
and Heritage and our finance officer
drafted our budget together. Since we are
no longer with the government and we
are becoming an independent body, the
budgets are approved by the
Taiguusiliugtiit board. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you.
Are you done? Mr. Keyootak.

Mr. Keyootak (interpretation): Thank
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you, Madam Chairperson. They might
not be able to respond to some of my
questions, but I have questions regarding
finance. According to the information
provided in your document, titled
“Appendix D-1,” Taiguusiliugtiit spent
$25,600 for contracted “Consulting
Services” during the 2014-15 fiscal year.
Can you explain what consulting services
you received during this time?

Chairperson: Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you. | don’t see it, but our finances are
audited and have to be approved by the
board. There might be other consulting
services that we have contracted, but as a
newly appointed chair, I’m just looking
through the paperwork at this time. I’ll
pass this on to Ms. Pallug. Thank you.

Chairperson: Thank you, Ms.
Thompson. Mr. Keyootak. Sorry. Ms.
Pallug.

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Thank you. | heard you say, “Appendix
D-1,” but I don’t know which year you’re
referring to there. Please indicate what
page it is you are referring to and
rephrase your question so that | know
where | can find it. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): We have
the information. Perhaps the Minister
provided it. Karen will provide it to you.
We have the information. One moment,
please.

We will give you a copy. Under
(interpretation ends) “Consulting
Services,” (interpretation) it lists Michael
Rudolph as the consultant. Ms. Pallug.

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
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Thank you. As | indicated earlier, we
didn’t spend our entire budget because of
vacancies. (interpretation ends) When we
lack capacity and when we are unable to
do the work at the office ourselves, then
we contract services with people who are
able to help us.

(interpretation) To date, our annual
reports have been submitted very late that
we even had to make three submissions.
If we were not sure who was supposed to
do that work or there was no one
available to do the actual work in the
office, then we used consulting services.
In this case, it was Michael Rudolph. He
was contracted to assist us with our
annual reports and policies. We paid him
that amount to help produce the annual
report. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Pallug. Mr. Keyootak.

Mr. Keyootak (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. Again, maybe
you might not be able to answer my
question, but in your document titled
“Appendix D-1,” Taiguusiliugtiit spent
over $47,407.08 on a number of
advertising contracts with Ayaya
Communications. Can you indicate how
Taiguusiliugtiit ensures that it is getting
the best value for money when procuring
contract services for its advertising
needs? Thank you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Keyootak. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Earlier,
Ms. Palluq outlined the problematic
areas. Every year, we hire consultants to
publish our annual reports, such as the
one for 2012-13. When information isn’t
recorded, it is very confusing to know
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what has been accomplished. We’re just
starting to get things under control. Most
of this occurred before | became the
chair. Ms. Pallug may remember the
issues relevant to that and she may be
able to supplement my response. Thank
you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you.

Ms. Pallug.

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Yes, Ayaya Communications does
variety of work in communications. As |
have mentioned, we have a call for
nominations for language awards. As
people are informed, they submit their
nominations. If we’re going to be making
any public announcements or if we’re
promoting something like language
month in February, we usually contract
Ayaya Communications. We have to
ensure that we do promotional work and
advertising and so on so that people are
informed of what we do as an entity,
what is happening in the near future,
particularly the issue of languages and
recognition of individuals through calling
for nominations, and so on. We use
advertising contracts with Ayaya
Communications. Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you.

Mr. Keyootak.

Mr. Keyootak (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. | would like to
ask a question on something that was
touched on earlier. According to its
summary of travel report for the 2014-15
fiscal year, the Inuit Ugausinginnik
Taiguusiliugtiit held three board of
directors meetings during the 2014-15
fiscal year in Repulse Bay, Cambridge
Bay, and Igloolik. Can you indicate how
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your board decides which community it
will travel to for its meetings?

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Keyootak. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. In the past
years, they were of the mindset that they
didn’t want to neglect any of the regions
and wanted to try to visit all three
regions. They had decided before that
they had meetings in Naujaat, in the
Kivallig region, and in the Kitikmeot, it
was Cambridge Bay, and they tried to do
that in the Kivallig, but it costs a lot of
money to travel in Nunavut and hotels
are not always available. We were
planning to visit more than once, but
since there were no hotel rooms, we
decided to meet somewhere else and this
had been a problem.

It will always be under consideration
because we don’t want to neglect any of
the communities and meeting in the three
regions, but you have to keep in mind too
that airfare is very expensive and we have
to keep an eye on our spending and we
will try to be mindful of that when we’re
making decisions. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Mr. Keyootak.

Mr. Keyootak (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. According to
its summary of travel report for the 2014-
15 fiscal year, representatives from the
Inuit Ugausinginnik Taiguusiliugtiit
travelled to Ottawa in February 2015 to
attend the Arctic Indigenous Languages
Symposium. Can you indicate if
Taiguusiliugtiit held any presentations or
attended any meetings during this
symposium and what types of
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information or resources were gained
from your attendance at this event?
Thank you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Keyootak. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you. Although I didn’t participate in this
meeting, Jeela was involved in that
process in her previous role at ITK, so |
will ask her to respond. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Ms. Pallug.

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Thank you. The meetings that Inuit
Tapiriit Kanatami held in Ottawa were to
discuss working on the standardized
writing system in Inuktut. It is part of
Taiguusiliugtiit’s mandate to determine
what kind of writing system should be
used for Nunavummiut. Taiguusiliugtiit
is geared only towards Nunavut, but we
can get help from work that’s being done
outside of Nunavut. That’s why we
attended those meetings in Ottawa and it
is very helpful to the roles and
responsibilities of Taiguusiliugtiit. Thank
you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Pallug. Mr. Keyootak.

Mr. Keyootak (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. According to
its summary of travel report for the 2014-
15 fiscal year, representatives from the
Inuit Ugausinginnik Taiguusiliugtiit
travelled to Pangnirtung in March 2015
to meet with the Sea Ice Knowledge and
Use (SIKU) project team. Can you
explain what this meeting entailed?

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
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Mr. Keyootak. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): | did not
participate in that meeting either. I have
to look further into exactly what is in the
report and once it’s completed, I’ll look
at what we gained or contributed to this
meeting. Ms. Pallug can supplement my
response. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you.
Ms. Pallug.

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Thank you. One of our staff members
travelled to Pangnirtung to work on sea
ice terminology. At that time, it was the
(interpretation ends) International Polar
Year (interpretation) when sea ice was
the focus of all the discussions. They
wanted to compile sea ice terminology in
Inuktitut and how Inuit hunters use the
sea ice. They wanted to know the sea ice
terminology, especially dangerous ice
conditions and when the best times are
for hunting, including sea ice formation
and break-up. There are many terms
within this field.

The direction was provided by the
Taiguusiliugtiit board to see if they could
complete this glossary of sea ice
terminology with definitions of all sea ice
conditions. A staff member travelled to
Pangnirtung and interviewed elders in the
community about sea ice terminology
and other associated knowledge, as well
as getting definitions of each term and
taking photos. Photos related to sea ice
were downloaded. This information will
also be compiled in Cape Dorset and
Igloolik. After the research has been
completed and the collection of
terminology is more or less complete,
including all the definitions, we will
publish them in a glossary.
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This is also in light of the need to collect
old Inuit terminology that isn’t used
anymore before they are lost and
forgotten. This will help to preserve the
language as well as assist in teaching our
youth about the dangers of sea ice
because Inuit hunters have spent a
significant amount of time on the sea ice.
This has been a very beneficial project. It
hasn’t been completed, but the work is
ongoing. Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Pallug. Mr. Keyootak.

Mr. Keyootak (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. This will be
my last question. According to its
summary of travel report for the 2014-15
fiscal year, representatives from the Inuit
Ugausinginnik Taiguusiliugtiit travelled
to Cambridge Bay in March 2015 to meet
with the Qitirmiut Aulajuumirnia Inuit
Youth Leaders. Can you explain what
this meeting entailed? Thank you,
Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Keyootak. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): The
only thing I recall is that the board of
directors held a meeting in Cambridge
Bay. | didn’t participate in that meeting
and I can’t recall whether they went to a
meeting in March 2015. Our previous
executive director went to that meeting
without the board of directors. Thank
you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you.
Are you done? Mr. Enook.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you,
Madam Chairperson. Before we get too
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far, 1 neglected to ask about staff. If you
can give me an opportunity, Madam
Chairperson. In your 2014-15 report, |
don’t think it’s actually factual today
according to what you said. | think you
said that there are eight positions in your
office. You indicated that their terms end.
I would like clarification on that. What
ends? Are they on contract? Are they not
employees? What ends? Thank you,
Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Enook. Ms. Pallug.

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Yes, | agree. Under an agreement, they’re
employed for set terms for different
reasons. I’ll use the linguist as an
example. That position’s term ends on
January 31 because | was supposed to
return to that position, which | previously
held. Our finance officer’s term ends on
December 4. Yes, that’s the case. Their
terms end because that’s when their
agreements expire on their agreed time of
employment. Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Pallug. Mr. Enook.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you,
Madam Chairperson. Just so that |
understand, are they just replacement
workers that signed an agreement with
terms that end? You were supposed to
return to your position and that term is
ending. Since you’re not returning to that
position, are you advertising for that
vacant job?

You stated that the finance officer’s term
will end on December 4. Is that just a
replacement worker too? Are you
advertising them as indeterminate
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positions or are they always going to be
done through contracts? Thank you,
Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Enook. Ms. Pallug.

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Thank you. The terms are different and
they have different reasons for ending
their terms. Since we have the strength of
being called the Inuit Ugausinginnik
Taiguusiliugtiit, if we’re going to try and
do a good job using our language, we
want all Inuit as employees, but we can’t
always do that.

If someone is good at finance but does
not speak Inuktut and is in a term
position with an end, it’s an opportunity
to possibly hire an Inuktitut-speaking
person for that position eventually. The
employees that we’re going to hire as
Taiguusiliugtiit, as the (interpretation
ends) Inuit Language Authority,
(interpretation) we have to utilize our
own language and that is our goal. That’s
why some of the terms end.

To clarify, yes, we want to advertise for
indeterminate jobs and we have created
indeterminate positions, and we set
positions with terms that end. In my
position, | have agreed to have a term for
three years. If | reapplied for the job after
three years, it would be under
consideration. It is our wish to have
indeterminate positions.

With our roles and responsibilities being
a serious matter, we’re working hard on
this. There are different reasons that
positions are available. | hope I
responded to that properly. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
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Ms. Pallug. Mr. Enook.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you,
Madam Chairperson. I’ll use an example.
What reason did they give for
Taiguusiliugtiit having an executive
director that is only there on a three-year
contract? We were told that there is that
kind of a contract. There must be a good
reason for doing that. I’m thinking that
once the executive director is on the job,
that person knows they are going to be
there for a long time and if they work
well and people accept them, that person
should be able to stay for a long time. If
that person stays for a long time, won’t
that be better for the organization with
them not just working on temporary
contracts? | hope | can get a response to
that. Thank you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Enook. Ms. Pallug.

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Thank you. As | stated, there are different
reasons. There are agreements or
contracts that end. That’s one of the
reasons. I’m not sure how to say it
properly in Inuktitut, but (interpretation
ends) internal transfer assignments
(interpretation) have terms that end too
for those things where a person leaves
their actual position and is asked to
transfer to another position on a
temporary basis. Once that term is up,
they go back to their previous position.

We want to have permanent employees.
I’Ill use my position as an example. I’'m
on a three-year contract because it’s an
internal transfer assignment. If | had
applied for my position, then it would be
different. My position is a term position
because I’m under an internal transfer
agreement or assignment. If | eventually
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want to go back to my other position,
then we need to have an end date for my
current position. As | stated, there are
different reasons for having term
positions, but our goal is to eventually
have indeterminate employees. Thank
you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you.
Mr. Enook.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you,
Madam Chairperson. There are many
things | don’t understand. Yes, |
understand that anybody can be
transferred in an agreement like that.

However, let me ask a question to the
board member. With the executive
director’s position, before you transferred
someone who’s working somewhere
already to this position, did you advertise
the position to the people of Nunavut to
see if there was anyone interested in the
executive director’s position?

Ms. Pallug, don’t get me wrong. I’m only
talking about the position, not about you
personally. They’re two different things.
Did you try to do that before you turned
to transferring someone internally to see
if there were other people interested in
Nunavut? Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Enook. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Yes, |
will speak as a board member. We have
given that some thought and we want to
hire someone that will be there
permanently. That is still our position.
However, because we’re running
independently for the first time, this is
what we’re expecting to do. As board
members, we want to have an executive
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director that will be there for a long time.
It’s also better to have a permanent job.
You can get more benefits when you
have a permanent position like that and
we will always try to go for that.

As we are more independent now,
because previously we needed help, now
| see on computers that a job has a term
position and if that person is interested in
continuing, then that is a possibility. It’s
not just us that you have to consider; you
have to consider the government as well.
If the person wants to continue with that
position and that person is capable, then
that person will have the option of
continuing with that position. | can say
that as a board member, I expect to have
people working there and progressing.
Thank you, Madam Chairperson. | hope I
was understandable.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Mr. Enook.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you,
Madam Chairperson. Just so that | will
completely understand this, let me say
this first: like you said, it’s not just your
group that does this. Yes, | agree that
you’re not the only entity that does this.
However, we’re only dealing with the
Taiguusiliugtiit group right now. We will
move on and deal with the other groups
at another time, but we’re only talking
about your group for the time being with
your operations.

In your report, what does it mean when it
states that the staff is appointed by the
board? Do they get appointed before the
position is advertised if they know of a
person who is able or do board members
look for staff out there and just appoint
them? With the way it is written in your
report, that’s how it seems to work.
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Are employees just appointed by board

members so that regular Nunavummiut

don’t have opportunities to apply there?
Is there’s no chance for us to be part of

your organization unless you’re looking
for me in particular or us in particular? |
just want to understand this completely.
Thank you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Enook. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you. That has been the case. That has
happened, to tell you the truth. There
have been appointments. As | stated
earlier, we are just becoming independent
now as the Inuit Ugausinginnik
Taiguusiliugtiit. We have been working
on that as the board and we want to make
sure that we have indeterminate,
permanent workers and not just casual,
temporary workers.

Let me tell you this first: we get
appointed to sit on the board of the Inuit
Ugausinginnik Taiguusiliugtiit. I got
appointed to that position. In the previous
years, people my age who are elders have
been board members and they don’t
really know about budgets and
documents. We’re very knowledgeable
about terminology and Inuit culture, but
not those things. We realize that you need
to have proper management and an
executive director to function properly.

It wasn’t deliberate. We had no choice.
We had to do appointments at the
beginning, but in the future, we plan to
advertise employment opportunities
before hiring new employees. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. (interpretation ends) Mr.
Enook, your last question.
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Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you,
Madam Chairperson. I’m not sure if this
will be my last question, though.

>>| aughter

For me personally, ever since | became
an MLA, | have always been concerned
about direct appointments, especially
when you’re using public money. The
government’s money is everyone’s
money. | always keep in mind that if
you’re going to be using government
money, then other levels of government
should be involved as well.

The reason I’m asking is I’m always
pushing and lobbying, and my colleagues
here might be as well. If there is going to
be a position opening, then all of the
people of Nunavut should have an
opportunity to apply. I was thinking that
the jobs in your office in particular are
really for Inuit. There should be people in
Nunavut that are available if you
advertise for these positions that can try
to apply for these jobs.

I understand that you don’t really want to
go that route, but I’m just encouraging
you as board members that when jobs in
your organization need to be filled, |
hope that you include the people of
Nunavut. Give them an opportunity
before you have to appoint someone
directly. That is just my encouragement
to you. | am done with this matter. Thank
you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Enook. (interpretation ends) | think it
was Mr. Joanasie that had a question.

Mr. Joanasie (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. This question
was asked earlier, but I would like to go
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back to Appendix D-I, Consulting
Services. They are broken down between
2012-13, 2013-14, and 2014-15. The first
one under 2013-14 states that a
symposium report and a strategic plan
were written, which cost $25,600. | have
never seen that report. Is that symposium
report available? Is the strategic plan
completed and is it available? That is my
question. Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Joanasie. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you. Let me give an explanation to what
was said to Joe earlier. Advertising to all
of Nunavut is what we expect and what
we want to do. That is the only way to be
welcoming to people who want to apply
for permanent positions, especially when
we live in such an expensive area. |
completely agree with you and we will
keep that in mind.

The funds used for contracted services, as
the executive director explained earlier,
was for work that had to be done that was
delayed. We had to hire someone to work
with us on a temporary basis. Those were
the expenditures that were asked about.
There were other things. We’re always
finding things that need to be done. As
we find things that need to be done, we
will use contract services when
necessary, only for the purpose of
attaining better things. We want to be
available to work with everybody in the
best way possible.

Also, we try to make all proper
considerations as the board because the
work that we need to do as the Inuit
Ugausinginnik Taiguusiliugtiit is very
important and we are fully committed to
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this. We’re not going to be hindering
anything and if we’re going to be
working toward fixing things and we
need to use contracts to accomplish that,
then we will do so after we talk about it
and agree about it at the board level. It’s
all in an effort to improve things. Thank
you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): I also
thank you, Ms. Thompson. Mr. Joanasie.

Mr. Joanasie (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. I’m not too
sure if they’re readily available, but in
your report and your strategic plan, it
states that once they’re completed, you
will make it available to the public. I’'m
asking if those reports are available to the
public. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Joanasie. Ms. Thompson, can you
respond to that question?

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): As far as
I know, we have not completed this yet.
We’re still working on it. For example,
the terminology posters are almost ready,
as the executive director reported earlier
today. Our staff are also working on other
documents. Although I did not take part,
they collected terminology during their
conference. They are now working on it
and once that is available, we will make it
public. Thank you.

Chairman (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Mr. Joanasie.

Mr. Joanasie (interpretation): Thank
you. Just to get further clarification, if
you’re going to be having a report written
like the one on the symposium, and in
this case a contractor wrote a report and a
strategic plan for $25,600, is that how
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much it costs for consulting services or
when they write reports?

I believe this was a standing offer
agreement, just like Mr. Enook’s
comment. It’s the same as direct
appointment. Likewise, you can make
this public under contract services. You
can go through contract services instead
of going through direct contracting. |
believe you should be able to do that. It’s
more of a comment than a question.

I was trying to ask a question. Do
consulting services cost that much to
write a report and a strategic plan? Thank
you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you
as well, Mr. Joanasie. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Yes, |
agree with you. We don’t want to award
direct contracts. Yes, we will consider
this carefully. I believe our executive
director has a better memory as to what
this funding line item was used for and |
would like her to elaborate. Thank you.

Chairperson: Ms. Pallug.

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Thank you. As we stated, we’re new to
these positions and | started in my
position again on November 2. We have
not seen the report on the symposium, but
once I see it, | will be able to respond to
your question. In our plan for 2013-14, it
was set in the priorities. The strategic
business plan is set for multiple years and
they make yearly strategic plans, but with
respect to the strategic plan for the
symposium, | have not seen the report
yet. Once | get that, I’ll be able to
respond to your question.
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In regard to your question, does it
actually cost that much to get consulting
contract services? The price varies. These
kinds of services differ and the costs
differ. | believe that’s how much it would
cost for contracting services to write a
report. Mike Rudolph was appointed in
2013-14 to write a report. Once | get that
information, I’ll be able to provide it to
you. Thank you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Pallug. At this time, we will take a
15-minute break.

>>Committee recessed at 14:51 and
resumed at 15:09

Chairperson: Welcome back,
everybody. The next name on my list is
Mr. Alex Sammurtok.

Mr. Alexander Sammurtok
(interpretation): Thank you, Madam
Chairperson. | have just one question
under contract services. Under
contracting methods, standing offer
agreement (SOA), is there a term for that
or is that an indeterminate position?
Thank you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Sammurtok. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you. Although I didn’t look into it, if |
remember correctly, it’s a term position.
Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you.
Mr. Mapsalak.

Mr. Mapsalak (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. (interpretation
ends) Page 4 of the 2013-14 annual
report indicates that “Taiguusiliugtiit
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developed a comprehensive language use
survey that can be conducted with Inuktut
speakers in government, private
businesses and the general public.” Can
you indicate how this survey was
distributed to departments and
organizations across the territory? Thank
you.

Chairperson: Thank you, Mr. Mapsalak.
Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you. | don’t believe we have started
working on that, but I’ll have Ms. Pallug
elaborate on that. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Ms. Pallug.

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Thank you. In the report, it states that the
survey has been completed on language
use in the government, private
businesses, and the general public. The
survey has been developed, but we
haven’t initiated it. | believe that we will
start with government employees and
asking them which language they use in
the workplace according to their roles,
responsibilities, and duties. The survey
has already been developed and | believe
that we will start with the government
employees. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Pallug. Mr. Mapsalak.

Mr. Mapsalak (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. There will
probably be a similar response to this.
(interpretation ends) Does the Inuit
Ugausinginnik Taiguusiliugtiit monitor
how often the language use survey is
conducted? Thank you.
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Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Mapsalak. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): We
haven’t decided how often the language
use survey is going to be conducted. We
will have to consult with various
departments and entities. If it is
approved, we could conduct surveys
more frequently. Doing the survey is part
of our goal. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Mr. Mapsalak.

Mr. Mapsalak (interpretation): Thank
you. (interpretation ends) Has the Inuit
Ugausinginnik Taiguusiliugtiit collected
any results from the language use survey
and, if so, how are these results
published? Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Mapsalak. I believe that was already
answered, that they haven’t conducted a
survey yet, but you can respond to that,
Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Yes,
that’s how it is. As she stated, this is
going to be one of our priorities with how
frequently we would do the survey and
we will have to come to an agreement
with the departments on the frequency.
We haven’t initiated this work, although
we have developed the survey. We
haven’t gone to the departments or staff
with it. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you.
Mr. Mapsalak.

Mr. Mapsalak (interpretation): Thank
you. (interpretation ends) Page 4 of your
annual report indicates that “A dialectal
attitudes survey was developed to
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research the attitudes of Inuktut speaking
teachers across Nunavut” and that “This
survey can also be used to assess
dialectal attitudes among employees in
government and the private sector,
interpreters and translators, youth and the
general public.” Can you indicate how
this survey was distributed to
departments and organizations across the
territory? Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Mapsalak. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): We
alluded to this issue today and that we
would like to meet with
interpreter/translators and other various
employees. With respect to the survey,
we have many dialectal differences in
Nunavut and sometimes we have a
tendency to use one dialect more than
others, so that’s why it’s cumbersome
and challenging.

It’s good that we have different dialects.
As | stated before, we’re starting to
compile the dialects on the computer and
it could be used as part of training. We’re
not going to drop the dialectal
differences, but thinking about the future,
we will have to discuss the dialectal
attitudes. It’s part of Ms. Pallug’s duties,
so she will respond. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Ms. Pallug.

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Thank you. To date, we have only
surveyed teachers. | have done research
with the teachers on the attitudes of the
Inuktitut language and dialectal
differences. To date, | have only
surveyed the teachers. | was using what is
called the “Survey Monkey” and no
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matter where you are, whether you come
from Igloolik or Cambridge Bay, using
the Survey Monkey, anybody can
respond to it. For those people who don’t
have a computer, | faxed them and they
faxed their responses back to me. Those
are the only two surveys 1 did.

I could not go to all the communities.
Therefore, | approached the teachers in
Igaluit and did a survey with them. | have
done surveys with the teachers and we
will do a survey with government
employees, interpreter/translators, the
general public, and the private sector. We
will use various means to perform the
survey, either using the Survey Monkey
or fax, though the survey is exactly the
same either way. We will provide an
opportunity to the public or other entities
using any means they prefer, be it by
computer or fax or in person.

To date, | have only surveyed the
teachers and it was part of my training
when | went to the University of Prince
Edward Island to get my Masters Degree.
It was a part of my work. | did a survey
only to the teachers and we will use that
same questionnaire for all surveys. Thank
you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Pallug. That was a good response.
Mr. Mapsalak.

Mr. Mapsalak (interpretation): | have no
further questions.

Chairperson: Next on my list, Mr.
Enook.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you,
Madam Chairperson. Your 2012-13
annual report indicates that
Taiguusiliugtiit had, at that time,
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determined a “need for better internal
controls and planning.” As it is now
2015, can you indicate if this is still a
concern for your agency? Thank you,
Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Enook. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Yes,
there are ongoing controls and planning
that we do at the office. We were not
very established in 2012-13. We have
made improvements for this year. For
2014, 2015, and 20161, we look forward
to having a closer working relationship so
that we can have better internal controls
and planning. We will continue to
monitor that. 1 hope | responded to the
question. Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Mr. Enook.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you,
Madam Chairperson. Again, there were
questions on your meetings, but I would
like further information on capacity and
infrequent meetings of board of directors.
There is also teleconferencing and other
means of having meetings. Do you have
face-to-face meetings only or do you use
other methods to hold meetings? Thank
you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Enook. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): We have
already been teleconferencing and
usually the finance officer will give us
information on either finances or other
items, but we do hold teleconference
meetings on occasion. If there’s a
requirement, we will have face-to-face
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meetings. Right now, we’re going to be
teleconferencing more often for this year.
We have considered that. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Mr. Enook.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you,
Madam Chairperson. | would like to ask
another question, but I really don’t know
how to phrase it. I’m sorry if I’m not
understandable.

Your 2012-13 annual report indicates that
Taiguusiliugtiit added over 6,000 terms
to the Uqausiit dictionary list. I’m not
sure how you say “dictionary” in
Inuktitut. I’m sure that this is continuing.
Can you elaborate on what that means?
Thank you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Enook. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): | can say
that we’re going to keep working and
compiling terminology for the dictionary.
Ms. Pallug can elaborate further on how
it has been used. Thank you.

Chairperson: Ms. Pallug.

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Thank you. Regarding the dictionary, it’s
a thick red dictionary that is being used
by interpreter/translators and people. It’s
called Ugausiit Tukingit. At that time, we
knew that we were missing a lot of
words, but there were 6,557 terms that
were put into the database. It’s written in
Inuktut and the English equivalent is
right across from it. There are over 2,000
English equivalents. This is going to be
an ongoing project in our office.

There are a lot of different dictionaries
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not only from Nunavut. There is also
Thomasie Qumak’s dictionary from
Nunavik and the Inuvialuit dictionary
that was compiled over there. Again, we
are also looking at Inuinnagtun and
Inuktut terms, which will be an ongoing
project. We will compile many different
terms on a computer database and they
will be made available to
interpreter/translators and the general
public. Thank you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Pallug. Mr. Enook.

Mr. Enook (interpretation): Thank you,
Madam Chairperson. | have no other
questions for the annual report, but
Madam Chairperson, if you would allow
me, we also had a hearing on the Inuit
Qaujimajatugangit Katimajiit because we
also wanted to find out what they were
doing, what their plans were, and so on.
It was very beneficial not only to us but
also to the general public and to the
audience watching the proceedings.

Let me ask you a similar question that |
asked to the Inuit Qaujimajatugangit
Katimajiit about their office. As the Inuit
Ugausinginnik Taiguusiliugtiit, how do
you feel that the Nunavut government
believes in you? Are they using your
office properly? Do they have respect for
your work? I’m asking three questions at
once. Do they believe in you? Do they
show you respect? Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Enook. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you. We have a board of directors and
some of them have been working on Inuit
Qaujimajatugangit for quite a while. We
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work very closely with different
organizations and utilize our board of
directors. When Inuit become unified,
they help each other and it’s very easy for
Inuit to help one another. That’s going to
keep going.

The more structured we become the more
our entity will be believed in by others.
We are still getting established. We
believe in our truth. We respect the
wisdom of the elders and we work
together closely and they have been
involved in those organizations for a very
long time. It will build strength with our
entity.

We don’t hear very much from the
Nunavut government and we don’t get
many requests, but in the near future, I
know that we will have a close working
relationship with the Nunavut
government. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Are you done? Mr.
Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak (interpretation):
Thank you very much, Madam
Chairperson. After my colleagues have
been asking questions, | now have one.
First of all, the Inuit Ugausinginnik
Taiguusiliugtiit, as an entity, it’s obvious
that you represent all of Nunavut’s 25
communities. With that, what about
Baker Lake? The reason why I’m asking
that question is because our community
of Baker Lake has different dialects.
Listening to the chair, I can say that there
are different dialects in our community
and they are starting to revitalize their
distinct dialects, even though they’re in
the same community. 1I’m asking if that
has been taken into consideration. Thank
you, Madam Chairperson.
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Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Mikkungwak. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you. Yes, that has been considered and
Baker Lake is not the only one. Mostly
all of the communities are concerned
about their distinct dialect. In Igaluit,
there are a lot of people from different
communities and even outside of Canada.
All of these will be considered in the
future. We do want to keep an open
dialogue with the communities and we
will have a dialogue with different
communities. The Inuit Ugausinginnik
Taiguusiliugtiit had a meeting in Baker
Lake once and we want to hold other
meetings depending on our budget.

Ms. Pallug will supplement my response.
Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you.
Ms. Pallug.

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Thank you. As | indicated earlier, we did
a dialectal attitudes survey with the
teachers. The most responses we got were
from Baker Lake teachers because of the
different dialects in the one community
and that’s probably why we got a lot of
responses from there. The reason why
they have different dialects is because
they were put into one established
community from the outlying area and it
was very obvious that they wanted to
retain their different dialects.

We also wanted to have a meeting with
Baker Lake because there’s mining
development right near it. This morning,

| talked briefly about uranium. They have
been concerned about mining terms,
especially in the Kivalliqg region, but
mostly in Baker Lake. We had a meeting
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over there to compile terms on mining
terminology and different dialects.
Usually, there is a public meeting to get
input from the general public. We went
there to have a meeting about mining
terms in 2011. It’s true that Baker Lake
has the highest number of different
dialects and I think there are seven
different dialects in that community
alone. Thank you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Pallug. Mr. Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak (interpretation):
Thank you very much, Madam
Chairperson. It’s good to hear the
response because the reason | brought it
up is that in Baker Lake, there are many
dialects, but also in Nunavut, it is the
community with the most elders and they
are passing on, as we know. They are the
ones that have the traditional knowledge
and we can feel that. We know that some
of them teach in the schools and they
train teachers.

With that being said, in reading these
reports, | saw that you worked on North
Baffin dialects. According to these
reports, it indicates that you worked on
Inuinnagtun dialects in the Kitikmeot.
Coming from the Kivallig, you’re
probably doing some work there. What
are your future plans for that? Thank you,
Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Mikkungwak. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Thank
you. With respect to the knowledge of
our elders, we start making mistakes
when we lose an elder. There are
different types of meetings that elders are
involved in. They’re always contributing
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to our meetings and they will always be
contributing while they are still here.
This is becoming urgent and | think we
all know that. We need to gather their
knowledge, not just terminology but
celebrations and the way to celebrate. We
need that. It will always be in our minds.
We want their knowledge and we will
gather knowledge from our elders to the
best of our ability. There are many
different dialects out there, but there are
budget constraints. We need to gather the
elders’ knowledge and their learned ways
and we will not let that go. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Mr. Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak (interpretation):
Thank you very much, Madam
Chairperson. You were established as the
Inuit Ugausinginnik Taiguusiliugtiit in
September [2008] under the Inuit
Language Protection Act. You have
worked on the Inuit language and
terminology. Looking at the work you
have done to date, you have produced
reports. What are you planning for the
future in regard to that? Thank you,
Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Mikkungwak. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Yes, we
would like to have ongoing planning in
this area. We all have radio stations in
every community and some elders have
radios. I’m just using that as an example.
When we’re gathering words or
terminology, I’ll be on the radio for one
or two hours on weekends. I’m just using
this as an example. Even though that is
the case, even when the Inuit
Ugausinginnik Taiguusiliugtiit work hard
and as long as their budget permits and as
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parents, we will need to help if we want
to keep the language alive. We cooperate
very easily in Nunavut and that will
continue. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you.
Mr. Mikkungwak.

Mr. Mikkungwak (interpretation):
Thank you very much, Madam
Chairperson. This will be my last
question. It is obvious that young people,
even as adults, we use new technology.
With that being the case, if we’re going
to keep our language alive or if we’re
going to revitalize it, have you
considered that for the future? Thank
you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Mikkungwak. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Yes, we
have thought long and hard about this. As
we stated earlier, there are snowmobile
parts and people are very knowledgeable
about them without being told to do so.
There will always be new things and we
expect that as Inuit, we will always be
adopting new terms. | don’t think we’re
going to let any of it go, but we need to
find terminology as a necessity and we
will expect that and we won’t be letting
go of it. For example, if the computer is
going to benefit us, let us use it and come
up with terminology for it. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. Mr. Joanasie.

Mr. Joanasie (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. | think we will
be wrapping it up, so I’ll try to make it
short. First of all, I would like to thank
you for being at the Legislative
Assembly.
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I would like to recognize, even though
we have discussed it before, and | would
like to thank our interpreters. They have
worked very hard during our meetings
and outside of the meetings.

I think this question was asked yesterday
to the Languages Commissioner if
interpreter/translators were available and
she stated that this is more of the
responsibility of Taiguusiliugtiit. I’'m
asking you now: do you gather the names
of interpreter/translators who are
accredited and do you work with them as
Taiguusiliugtiit to come up with proper
terminology?

I’ll have another question after this.
Thank you, Madam Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Joanasie. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Yes, we
will keep working on that. In the next
few months, we would like to meet with
different interpreter/translators. Last
spring, we sat down with the legal
interpreters and we invited elders to
figure out how we can get more
assistance from them. There are still
elders who don’t speak English and they
have to understand properly. We will
definitely keep that in mind.

| appreciate the interpreters and they’re
always helping, especially when health
matters come up for patients who need to
go to the hospital. The
interpreter/translators are very useful and
we will keep working with them as long
as we’re able and we will get information
from them. This will be an ongoing
process in the coming years. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you.
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Mr. Joanasie.

Mr. Joanasie (interpretation): Thank
you, Madam Chairperson. I’m glad to
hear that interpreter/translators will be
getting together. I think it would be nice
to listen even if you’re not an interpreter.

I wanted to ask a question on another
subject. I would like to ask a question as
part of what Mr. Mikkungwak asked
earlier about new technology. It’s thought
that the younger generation may be

losing their language. 1 always want to
work harder to keep our language alive
for my children and my future
grandchildren.

I recall, through the Department of
Culture and Heritage, Henry Isluanik. 1
think he wrote that our language is our
strength, our language unites us, our
language enables us to work, our
language keeps our families healthy, and
our language is our wellness. Even | start
thinking that my language is my strength,
my language is my identity, my language
gives me the ability to work, my
language keeps my family healthy, and
my language gives me wellness.

Our children who are younger than us,
even though I’m the youngest here... .
The young people today, our children,
how can we get them to hold onto our
language and make it attractive and
worthwhile to appreciate and be proud
of? How are you going to promote that? |
want to hear that from you. Thank you,
Madam Chairperson. That’s all | have.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Mr. Joanasie. Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Yes, that
is good to hear. | am so proud of younger
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people when they speak better than | do
and when they are more eloquent than |
am. We would like to see that as the Inuit
Ugausinginnik Taiguusiliugtiit. We know
that that will sometimes not be the case in
the future as the population increases and
with immigrants from all over the world
coming in, but we will not give up or let
that go. | know that even after we’re
gone, the Inuit Ugausinginnik
Taiguusiliugtiit will hold onto that.

We also expect that in the home, it is part
of the parents’ job. I don’t know how or
where we can think about that. Very
young people are starting to have
children. Even though they’re young,
they need to be taught child rearing. This
has been talked about by the elders in the
past and we’re holding onto that as the
Inuit Ugausinginnik Taiguusiliugtiit. We
will keep working on it.

Showing appreciation and providing help
are very useful. We should encourage
young people who work hard to retain the
language through song, dance, or
drumming. These are the things that
strengthen different areas and we can
help in those areas as the Inuit
Ugausinginnik Taiguusiliugtiit. Thank
you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Thompson. | believe he is done with
his questions. We will be adjourning
soon. Do you have any closing remarks?
Ms. Thompson.

Ms. Thompson (interpretation): Yes.
Although we didn’t respond to some of
your questions properly, we are very
appreciative of being here. We know that
this will not be our last time in front of
you and we want to continue to work
with you as our office continues to get
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better. Being proud and working together
is very important. I’m very proud of you
and I will always be proud of you just the
way that we are proud of elders. When
you’re sitting, we’re always watching
you to the end. That’s how proud we are
of you and we will continue to work with
you.

Our executive director will have closing
remarks as well. Thank you.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you.
Ms. Pallug.

Ms. Pallug-Cloutier (interpretation):
Thank you. Let me respond to Siurjug’s
question in regard to
interpreter/translators. It is under the
responsibility of Taiguusiliugtiit and it is
in our legislated mandate. Under the Inuit
Language Protection Act, it states that we
may certify interpreter/translators after
evaluating their skill or competency level
in the Inuit language. That’s one of the
duties of Taiguusiliuqtiit.

However, after the Nunavut
Interpreter/Translator Society was
dissolved, the responsibility was taken
over by the Taiguusiliugtiit group, but we
haven’t set up a test for
interpreter/translators. Right now, we can
only make a list of interpreter/translators
and that’s what we are doing. We are
compiling them. Once we have put
together a comprehensive proficiency
test, we will do the accreditation
afterwards, which is part of our mandate.

With respect to your other question in
terms of preserving and promoting the
language, what Taiguusiliugtiit will be
doing and what we have discussed up to
now is that anyone who wants to work on
those kinds of projects can ask for funds
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from the Department of Culture and
Heritage. We did that for the very first
time using the Nattilingmiut dialect. It’s
one of the most distinct dialects in
Nunavut. We have given them funding to
do their work in preserving their unique
dialect.

We know now that this can help preserve
our language. We have to think if we will
always have enough money to contribute
to these people who want to do that kind
of work. It’s the government’s public
money and it has to be handled properly
through contribution agreements. Once
that is set up properly in the future, we
will continue to be able to give money
out to people who are working to
preserve their language and dialects.

Further, in response to your questions, we
know that our language is very precious.
The different dialects sound very good
when you listen to them and we want to
preserve all of them for the future and
keep them alive. As workers at
Taiguusiliugtiit, we are very aware of that
and we always get support. | am grateful
that we were able to be here to answer
questions about the work of
Taiguusiliugtiit. Thank you, Madam
Chairperson.

Chairperson (interpretation): Thank you,
Ms. Pallug. We are proud of you as well
for answering the questions appropriately
and very clearly. Thank you.

Thank you as well to my colleagues, the
interpreters, and our staff. | thank all of
you for being able to be with us here. We
are adjourned.

>>Committee adjourned at 15:55
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